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PETITIONER: MOHAMEDUO OULD SLAHl

Hello,

I, Mohamedou Ould Slam, detained in GTMO, under ISN# 760, herewith apply for a writ of
habeas corpus.

As to my detention, I turned myselfon Sep. 2001 to my government in Majjfitiiliia;iwhen they
asked me to. My government extradited me eventually to the U.S. and since then I 'am being
detained,in GTMO, Cuba.

I have done no crimes against the U.S., nor did the U.S. charge me with crimes, thus I am filing
for my immediate release.

For further details about my case, I'll be happy for any future hearings.

Best Regards,

, Ould Salahi

3 March 2005

NOTE: Detalnee wrote this himself in English. APPROVie Ii!¥
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GEORGE W. BUSH,
President of the United States
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Commander, Joint Task Force­
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Inprocess Date: 8/5/02
Inprocess Weight: 138.6

ISN: 760

Refused Weights: 2105, 4/04, 3/04, 2104,
Inprocess Height: 67.0

Date
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UNCLASSIFIEDIIFOUO

Summarized Sworn Detainee Statement

The Tribunal President read the Hearing InstrUdions to the Detainee, IUId confl1'med
that the Detainee understood IUId had no questions.

Making reference to the Detainee ElectWnform, the Tribunal President confirmed the
Detainee's participation, andthat he had requested United Stares intellJgence
documentary evidence to bepresented to the Tribunal on his behalf,

The Unclassij1ed Summary ofEvidence was then reod in full to the Tribunal by the
Recorder.

The Tribunal President then permfJbul the Detainee to present evidence, und advised
him he hod the assistance ofhis Personal Representative in doing so.

Detainee: Firstofall, there is a discrepancy between what we had before, and what has
just been read (in the revised Unclassified Summaryl).

Tribunal President: What was the discrepancy?

Detainee: It didn't state before that I was a member ofal Qaida or the Taliban.

Tribunal President: Personal Representative, would you please reviewthe document he
has and compare it to what was just read.

Detainee: I just want to make sure.

The Detainee then read aloud in Engll$h thefour allegatWlfs as Ifoted Olf the
Unclossijied Summary to the Tribunal, then tIUIIk thefollowing comments:

Detainee: This is all I have received.

Tribunal President: Personal Representative, do you see the statement onthere, and
could you explain the Unclassified Summary to him?

At this time, the Personal Representative and Tribunal President took a MOment to
explain the Unclassified Sunmurry ofEvidence to the Detainee; that there werefour
supporting comments to the charge that he (the Detainee) was a 1IIII1Ifber ofthe T/llib/ln
or at {laJda. The Tribunal President then confl1'medthe Detllinee understood the
UnclasSified Summary.

Tribunal President: At this time. this is whare you have the opportunity to respond to
each ofthe allegations, or you may make a statement; which do you prefer?

I Arevised Unclassified SIlI!ll1IaI'Y ofEvidence was presented to 1he Detain... in a meeting prior to the
Tribunal hearing.

ISN#760
Enclosure (3)
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UNCLASSIFIEDIIFOUO

Detainee: I wanttofirst take an oath. ifyou would allow me to, Ma'am.

Tribunal President: Could you answer the question first; do you want to respond to each
allegation?

Detainee: Yes.

Tribunal President: And you would like to make those statements under a Muslim oath?

Detainee: Yes.

The MusHm oath was tuImiJIistered to the Detainee by the Recorder, fllId the Dewinee
indicated he prele"edto readeach o1Jegaticn aloud andrespond himselfwithollt the
assistance olhis Personal Representotlve.

3.01. The Detainee admitted that he traveled to Afghanistan to wage Jihad

Detainee: That is correct. I went to Afghanistan in late 1990 and December 1991 to help
fight against the Communists. I went again inFebruary 1992 fur the same reason. When
the Communists lost in 1992, I left there for good and never went back. My whole
purpose was ouly to help my Muslim brothers wage Jihad against the Communists, who
invaded the country and forbade the practice oftheir religion. Ma'am, this one is very
important because.this says I am an enemy combatant against the United States, which
doesn't fit I would like to tell you that an integral part ofthe Islamic religion is to help
oppressed people; they were oppressed where they couldn't freely practice their religion.
No further statement to number one.

3.02. The Detainee stated that his goal was to become amartyr by dytngfor Islam.

Detainee: This allegation is corree1. I will give you an example; I think it is honorable if
a U.S. citizen dies fur a good cause wearing his unifonn. For us, as Muslims, it is the
same; to die for a good cause, to be honorable to die defending oppressed people. This
belief is a part ofmy religion; I believe it, and I will continue believing it. That's all I
have to say about number two; no more information.

3.03. The Detainee trainedat the 01 Farouq camp in Afghanistan where he took the alias
ofAbu Masab.

Detainee: Yes; I came as a very young man, and this is a correct allegation.

Personal Representative: Is this the one in Khost?

Detainee: Y~s, exactly, the one in Khost.

UNCLASSIFIEDIIFOUO
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Personal Representative; Ma'am, I was just reading from estlier notes that this was in
Khost.

Tribunal President: Are yon saying that al Farouq was in Khost, at the time you were in
Afghanistan?

Detainee: Yes, Ma'am; that is very important By waging Jihad against America, they
took Kandahar as a headqUllIters. My Personal Representative wanted to make a point
that the old version ofthe allegation against me, that I was with al Qaida and waging war
against America, was not my case. WhenI came to Afghanistan, I couldn't choose the
training camp; al Qaida and the Ambs ran the camps. I said, hey, I want to help. They
said I could not until I had training. I said, OK, I'll take the training. They sent me to al
Farouq camp for seven weeks. Like anybody else, I never hesrd ofal Farouq before I got
there. People who ran the camp suggested to me to take an alias because it wasn't good
to take my name; they were afraid ofpeople from Communist countries finding out.
They were afraid people from Libya or ex-USSR, who were forbidden to wage Jihad,
would find out, so I took an alias, and it was tine for me to take it. Ma'am, I would not
have been approved to go to the front had I refused to take the training. It made sense for
me to go through the training, which I paid no money for, and it was good. No further
statement about number three.

3.a4. the Detainee received training on the Kalashnikov, Semlnov, UZI, M-J6, Makarov
pistol and RPO's while at the at Farouq camp. .

Detainee: This is correct. I just want to complete it; there were other weapons, but it's
been a long time, maybe 14 yeers. Other Soviet weapons were involved with the
training; for example, I don't see mortars here. I jnst want to let you know the training in
al Farouq, at my time, is well known. There were other weapons I don't remember. If!
get a catalog ofRussian weapons, I could point out what weapons I trained on. It is only
my idea that it made sense they took those Russian weapons because they were very
cheap and were everywhere. It made sense to train on weapons they possessed. Ma'am,
I didn't design the progmm ofal Farouq; I came and it was already designed for
thousands ofpeople who came for Jihad. including your country, who helped us with
ammunition. For example, the mortar ammunition was made in the U.S.A. I remember
60,80, and 120 mm rockets. I don't know what you call this. I want to add some more
to this point. When I trained, I was bored. When I left Afghanistan, and came back the
next year to go the frout; when I came, they knew I was trained because they kept
records. WhenI gave them my name (his alias), they sent me to the front, to Galdez,
commanded by Jalaladin Hakkani. I was with an Arab group; they were fighting under
an Afghani commander, but physically they were in separate places. The city ofGaldez
was in Communist hands, but after three weeks ofsurrounding, in February 1992, the
Communists agreed to give the city up; to surrender. They arranged the surrender, and
the majority had to stop firing. We didn't really fire one shot, except in training. At this
point, we heard about Kabul being taken; we heard Kandahar and Jalalabad were under
Communist control. Right after the break down of Communists, the Mujahiden

ISN#760
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themselves started to wage Jihad against themselves, to see who would be in power; the
different factions began to fight against each other. I decided to go back because I didn't
want to fight against other Muslims, and found no reason why; nor today did I see a
reason to fight to see who could be president or vice-president. My goal was solely to
fight against the aggressors, mainly the Communists, who forbid my brethren to practice
their religion. Ma'am, I was knowledgeable I was fighting with al Qaida, but then al
Qaida didn't wage Jihad against America. They told us to fight with our brothers against
the Communists. In the mid-90's, they wanted to wage Jihad against America, butI
personally had nothing to do with that. I didn't join them in this idea; thet's their
problem. I am completely out ofthe line between al Qaida and the U.S. They have to
solve this problem themselves; I am completely independent of this problem. As far as
the timing, because this is vital and important to my case, my agenda, or Jihad, was
against the Communists, not the U.S. or its allies. In the late 90's it was clear that al
Qaida trained people as potential soldiers against the U.S. That is very important, and for
the timing, I asked my PR ifthere were many witnesses, and to pick one witness, he
suggested U.S. intelligence; it's his choice, and I accept this choice, because you trust
your country more than anyone else fur this information. I just want to emphasize this
should be trivial that I went to Afghanistan, in this case. Your honor, as to the evidence, I
have not much else to say. I confessed this, and I cannot see where the hostility against
the U.S. fits.

Trilmna1 Member Oueatigns to petainee

Q: Where are you from?

A: I am from Mauritania.

Q: And a personal question ifyou don't mind me asking; how old are you?

A: I am 34 years old.

Q: How old were you when you first went to Afghanistan?

A: 20 years old.

Q: Where were you captured?

A: I turned myself in; thet's a very good question, thank you. I turned myselfin to the
Mauritanian government, and they told me I was wanted. I told them I would come to
them, and they said the American goveroment wanted me. I was kidnapped and spent 8
months in Jordan; they tried to squeeze information out ofme. I then went from
Kandahar to Cuba. I turned myself in September 29, 2001, around 2300 hours.

Q: How long were you in Jordan?

"------_..-... .

UNCLASSlFIEDllFOUO
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A: Eightmonths.

Q: And you said after you left Afghanistan in the early 90's, you never went back again?

A: Never, never, never, never.

Q: Pakistan?

A: Never; no Bosnia, no Chechnya; I just went back to finish my studies until I tumed
myself in; I had a big family to feed. I had 100 mouths to feed.

Q: You said when you were discussing the allegation before, ydu'd fight anyone
oppressing Muslims; would you consider what the U.s. was doing in Afghanistan there in
2001, would that warrant you to go fight?

A: First ofall, I told myselfbefore that I don't think that the U.S. forbids Muslims to
practice their religion; in the U.s. there are many Muslims, why should 1fight?

Q: Why do you think you get such special treatmenthere at Guantanamo?

A: Your government csptured me for the wrong reasons; they thought I was part ofthe
millennium plot This was the Algerian who tried to smuggie explosives from Canada
into the U.S. in December 1999; in Jordan, they made me crazy to admit I had something
to do with it. Because there was so much pressure and bad treatment, I admitted to this.
Your intelligence later realized it was not true and a mistake, and this was a form of
redemption. Furthermore, I am the most honest Detainee in the whole of this camp; I
gave all the infurmatlon and every bit ofinfurmation I knew of; I challenge them to prove
1have not provided good information.

Q: Yon mentionedyou traveled to Canada; what were some ofyour travels after you left
Afghanistan up until your arrest?

A: When I came back in February 1992, I went to Germany to study in Glicht In
August 1993, I went on holiday for two or three weeks to my country. Then I stayed in
Germany, and I dido't travel until May 1998 when I went to Saudi Arabia for Haaj,
because every Muslim should go for this duty once in his life, and I went with my wife.

Q: After Haaj, did you go back to Germany?

A: Oh yes, I used to live in Germany, so after about one month I went back. On
September 16, 1998, I went to Canada because I wanted to immigrate there because of
unemployment in Germany; I was really only in Germany for my studies. I wanted other
options or another shot, goodbye Germany, and wanted to go to a place where I could
exercise my trade. I am an electrical engineer. I stayed in Canada in one week, and
finished my immigrationpapers and went back to Germany. In November 1999, I

ISN#760
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learned from German immigration I had to leave, and they wouldn't prolong my visa.
That's bad, but at least I could go to Canada and start a new life. I was hosted by a friend
ofmine, a college or study mate, by the name ofRasni Mohsen.

Q: What year was that? When did you go back to Canada?

A: November 26, 1999. Becanse1learned Germany wouldn't prolong my visa, I went to
Canada and was hosted by my friend. Then this Algerian guy, in December, tried to
smuggle the explosives into the U.S. The police came for a lot ofreasons, mainly
because they were watching friends ofRasni. Furthennore, I am the cousin ofthe right
hand of Osama bin Laden, who has $25 million on his head. But those facts were known
to the intelligence community, and they said, look at this guy, he has been to Jihad, and
be is the cousin ofthe right hand ofOSlIIDll bin Laden; they said that's him, that's him. I
said, yes, I have been to Afghanistan. but I have nothing to do with this sh_t. in good
English, and I couldn't believe it. The guy that was captured would not cooperate with
American authorities; obviously later onbe decided to cooperate after September 11,
which helped my case, too. I also want to tell you I took several polygraphs, which I
passed perfectly.

Q: When did you go back to Mauritania?

A: I went back to Mauritania January 21, 2000; ask me why.

Q: Why?

A: Because that was not 11 good life; wherever I went I had people right behind me at the
market watchi.ng my butt, I said what the beck? That is not the life I want to live; I
wanted to live a productive and peaceful life. I am a Muslim, and I believe in Jihad, but
I'm not ready 10 kill innocent people for it. I said hey man, you can keep your country
fur yourself; so I went back to my country; that's why.

Q: SO your understanding is that you were arrested because they thought you were part
ofthe Millennium plot?

A: Yes; that was clear, and that's what my government told me.

Q: Was Hasni Mohsen involved in the plot?

A: No; be was not.

Q: Was he arrested?

A: No; I was also not arrested.

Q: Why was the intelligence watchi.ng him?

ISN# 760
Enclosure (3)
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A: Because ofhis friends; he has very bad friends, such as Raoul Hanashi, and some
Arabs that I don't know, because my time in Canada was very short. Hanashi was the
guy from the same country who was the one who was recruited to Jihad and introduced to
Abu Zaydida; that was very, very bad.

Q: How do you know all that?

A: Because I read it in the papers and the interrogators told me.

Q: Can I get your response to the very fllSt allegation that you are a member of the
Taliban or al Qaida?

A: Tbe.'I'alip8fli! have nothing to do with them whatsoever. AlQllil.ill,l~arnamb~
in Afghafiistan in 91and 92; AfterI leftAfghafiistan, I broke allmy relations with al
Qaida.

Q: And you've never provided them money, or any type ofsupport since then?

A: Nothing whatsoever.

Q: Ever recruited for tham?

A: No, not at all; no trying to recruit for tham.

Q: You said that you were pressured to admit you were involved in the Millennimu plot,
right?

A: Yes.

Q: To whom did you make that confession?

A: To the Americans.

Q: And what do you mean by pressure?

A: Your honor, I don't wish to talk about this nature of the pressure ifI don't have to.

Tribunal President: You don't have to; we just want to make sure that you were not
tortured or coerced into saying something that wasn't true. That is the reason he is asking
the question.

A: You just take from me I am not involved in such a homble attack; yes I admit to
being a member ofal Qaida; but I am not willing to talk about this. The smart people
came to me and analyzed this, and got the truth. It's good for me to tell the truth, and the

UNCLASSIFIED/IPOVO
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information was verified. I said I didn't have anything to do with this. I took and passed
the polygraph, and they said I didn't have to speak ofthis anymore. They said please
don't speak ofthis topic anymore, and they haven't opened it up to this topic for a year
now.

Q: So no U.S. authorities abused you in any way?

A: I'm not willing to answer this question; I don't have to, ifyou don't force me to.

Tribnnal President Qugtion. to Detaipee

Q: When did you go back to your home country from Canada?

A: It was January 21,2000.

Q: What bad you been doing in your country since January?

A: Good question; I was working for a company named Nasunad Medical.

Q: What did they do?

A: It was a company that deals with medical equipment that what we call inMauritania a
scauner, they inject pecple with a bottle; it's not as advanced as an MRI. They deal with
this and in controlling medical equipment such as oxygen equipment, so that pecple
would stay alive.

Q: And what did you do for that company?

A: They also had an internet service provider, a small one. In my country, ifyou work
for a company, you touch everything; sometimes they sent me to the hospital to repair
equipment, but most of the time, I was repairing the computers and installing software,
and fixing and developing the service.

Q: Is that what you learned in school?

A: Yeah; like I said I am an electrical engineer, and microelectronics. In July 2001, I left
the company to go to another company called Ahman Peche. This is aFrench word for
fish. This company was a company ofpeople from my tribe, and they gave me more
money to join them. They wanted to develop the business and to use me; I was just
setting up my office, because they didn't know what to do with me at first. They bad
many electronic devices and electrical machines they WlI1lted me to take care of. I bad
just set up my office and installed the AC, and September I I th happened. Then America
went crazy looking for leads; and I was the cousin of the right hand ofOsama Bin Laden,
and oh, get him. And in my country you don't need any evidence to arrest anybody, and
need no jurisdiction to extradite anybody.

ISN#760
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Q: Did you have to have permission or authority to leave al Qalda? I need to understand
ifyou could walk away from an organization like that.

A: That is a good question. Ifyoujoined Jihad, at least when I Was, you are a de-facto al
Qalda member. They made me swear that you are here to take orders and to follow
Osama, and do nothing against Islam. There is no money that they pay you, and it's just
benevolent work. It is so, OK, but Jihad stopped in Mghanistan, so 1went to go back to
study because Communism was gone. Nobody told me I had to stay, so I left.
Nonetheless, my cousin tried many times to getme back, and called me a lot, and I was
like, hey, I want 10 work a little bit. I didn't want to tell him to forget me, because they.
would be against me, and they would hunt me down. Do you understand my point? If
you provide information they will hunt you down, but ifyou just go away and try to
break contact, there is just no contact. The only contact was my cousin who tried
desperately to get me back, but he couldn't, because I told him mom was sick, and had
problems here, etc.

Q: How much time do you feel like you devoted to al Qalda?

A: rtrained 7 weeks with al Qalda, and I was 3 weeks fighting in the front. That makes
10 weeks total devoted with al Qalda.

Q: And they've invested money and time in training you, so you walked away, but they
attempted to get you back; do you think that's all they're going to do?

A: AI Qalda is 10,000 people, and they cannot control all ofthose people. You must
have the passion to go back to them, and ifyou don't have the passion, and you don't hurt
them, it's sort ofOK; that's my thinking, or my feeling on that. But ifyou said I'm going
to say every name they trained, that would be bad; very bad.

Q: Have they ever provided you any other funding or support?

A: Why should they provide me any support when rwork for the allies? rdon't see why.

Q: Did you ever work for some ofthe non-governmental agencies; NGO's?

A: No, never.

The Tribunal President thanked the Detaineefor hispa11icipation, and asked ifhe had
any nwre q/lilStions or stIltements.

Detainee: I want to thank you very much, for asking the questions that helped me
remember.

ISNIi 760
Enclosure (3)
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Upon informing him he (the Detllinee) would be IWtijiedofthe results ofthe
procudlngs, the Detainee asked thefollowing question:

Detainee: Madam, when would that be?

Tribunal President: I don't know exactly how long it will take. We've noticed it takes
anywhere from. 3-4 weeks, but sometimes 4 months. We should hear something pretty
soon.

The TribuRalFraidmtra_ed exphzining the Mill/illprocas to the Detai1lee; the
Detainee inttm'flpted briefly to comultprivately with his Personal Representative.

Personal Representative: Ma'am, that (discussion with the Petainee) was a comment
about being retumed to another country instead ofhis home country; I told him the State
Pepartment would work all those issues out at a later date.

Tribunal President: (to the Detainee) Ifl'm IUlderstanding your comments to your
Personal Representstive, you do not want to return to your home COIUltry?

Detainee: No, because I'm threatened because of the amount ofthe information I've
provided to the United States, I would be hunted down and I would be killed. I want to
be provided security.

Tribonal President: We'll make note ofthat; is there a particular country you are
interested in going to? Not to say that we make that decision, someone else would make
that decision, the PR is correct, but we'll put it on the record.

Detainee: United States.

Tribunal President: You want to go to the United States?

Detainee: I do.

Tribunal President: OK; that is now made a part ofthis record, and the State Department
will take note of this request.

The TribunalFraideRt read the remainder ofthe hearing i1/Structions to the Detainee,
to include the description ofthe AdministrativeReview Boardprocas.

Detainee: (for the Administrative Review Board) To contact my family, I need
encouragement, because I am having problems contacting my family. For example, a
couple ofmy letters were over a year old, so how is it possible to handle this in a
reasonable way?

ISN#760
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Tribunal President: We'll make note ofthat, and talk to the people that are responsible
for the process ofhandling and receiving mail; that's not part ofour responsibility, but
we'll certainly pass that along to the people that will bebandling that.

Detainee: YOll understand my point?

Tribunal President: Yes, I do. You said youhad a lot offamily, though, about 100
members?

Detainee: Yes, I do. They can write all at once, and it would be like they can hit you
with mail. Butthe mail gets stuck somewhere, and it's not convenient in am going to
prepare myselffor another board, and the letters comes seven months after the decision
ofthe board; that is not very ideal.

Tribunal President: That is correct, and we'll pass that information on.

Detainee: Thank you, Ma'am.

The Tribunal President thankedthe Dehlineefor his parlidpation and adjourned the
open session.

AUTIJENTICATION

I certify the material contained in this transcript is a true and accurate summary ofthe
testimony given during the proceedings.

Colonel, U.S. Army
Tribunal President
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Mohamedou Ould Slahi

To the Board:

Enc.\OS4re (Il)
f. c.-c.
i'~~el~~A

\SN 7&>0

Date

UNCLASSIFIED.

UNClASSIFIED.

Annual Review Board
Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

The attached letter is to place on the record my attorneys' objections on my
behalf to this proceeding. I agree with their objections, and ask that the letter be made
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UNCLASSIFIED
Department of Defense

Office for the Administrative Review of the Detention of Enemy
Combatants at U.S. Naval Base Guantanamo Bay, Cuba

3 October 2006

TO: SLABI; MOHAMEDOU OULD

SUBJECT: UNCLASSIFIED SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE
REVIEW BOARD IN THE CASE OF SLAHl, MOHAMEDOU OULD

1. An Administrative Review Board will be convened to review your case to determine ifyour
continued detention is necessary.

2. The Administrative Review Board will conduct a comprehensive review ofall reasonably
available and relevant information regarding your case. At the conclusion of this review the
Board will make a recommendation to: (l) release you to your home state; (2) transfer you to
your home state, with conditions agreed upon by the United States and your home state; or (3)
continue your detention under United States control.

3. The following primary factors favor continued detention:

a. Commitment

1. In 1992, the detainee traveled to Afghanistan to fight and was assigned to clean mortar
batteries.

2. The detainee actively recruited for jihad from 1992 to 1997 while in Germany. The
detainee felt spreading propaganda for jihad was an important function. The detainee would
often speak ofjihad while he preached at mosques in Germany.

3. A source stated the detainee influenced an individual to travel to Afghanistan for
weapons training and to join the armed Taliban forces. The detainee facilitated this individual to
meet with Usama bin Laden where the individual swore allegiance to al Qaida.

4. The detainee stated that he attended a mosque in Germany where the director was the
leader of the Egyptian Islamic Jihad in the area.

5. An al Qaida operative identified the detainee as an al Qaida facilitator who played a
part in recruiting jihadists to fight in Afghanistan and Chechnya and to become suicide hijackers
in the West. The detainee convinced the al Qaida operative and three future world trade center
suicide hijackers to undergo al Qaida basic military training in Afghanistan.

6. The detainee stated that while he was in Germany he worked with a friend to recruit
people to go fight jihad in Afghanistan.

UNCLASSIFIED

DMO Exhibit 1
Page 1 00

0008~O

ISN760



UNCLASSIFIED
SUBJECT: UNCLASSIF1ED SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE FOR ADMINISTRATIVE
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7. In December 1999, the detainee becarile the Imam at a mosque in Montreal. The
detainee thought that the Algerian Armed Islamic Group and the Salafist might have a presence
at the mosque.

8. An al Qalda operative stated that the detainee facilitated his initial travel to Afghanistan .
and his initial introduction to Usama bin Laden.

9. An Islamic extremist stated that he attended meetings in the detainee's house on
occasions with a future sUicide bomber and an al Qaida operative.

b. Training

l. The detainee stated he was trained in the use ofweapons and terrorist tactics in Usama
bin Laden's training camps in Afghanistan.

2. In Janwuy 1991, the detainee trained for six weeks at camp al Farouq, located near
Khost, Afghanistan. The training consisted ofphysical exercises and weapons training on the
Kalasbnikov rifle, Uzi, M-16, Makarov pistol and rocket propelled grenades.

c. Connections!Associations

l. The detainee admitted he swore loyalty to Usama bin Laden in 1990.

2. The detainee was tasked by an individual to set up a radio broadcasting station in Sudan,
to assist in counterfeiting money, especially United States currency, in Kandahar, Afghanistan,
and to help establish greater internet connectivity between Sudan and Kandahar. The detainee
denied taking part in any of these taskings.

3. The detainee admits being involved in money laundering activities. The detainee wired
United States currency three times to one ofUsama bin Laden's operatives.

d. Intent

The detainee stated his goal while in Afghanistan was to become a martyr by dying for
Islam.

4. The following primary factors favor release or transfer:

a. The detainee denied ever helping anyone travel to Chechnya or Afghanistan.

b. The detainee denied having any knowledge of the attacks in the United States prior to
their execution on 11 September 2001 as well as denying knowledge ofany rumors or plans of
future attacks on the United States or United States interests.
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5. You will be afforded a meaningful opportunity to be heard and to present information to the
Board; this includes an opportunity to be physically present at the proceeding. The Assisting
Military Officer (AMO) will assist you in reviewing all relevant and reasonably available
unclassified information regarding your case. The AMO is not an advocate for or against
continued detention, nor may the AMO form a confidential relationship with you or represent
you in any other matter.
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Summary ofAdministrative Reyiew Board Pr0cee4bll18 for ISN 760

The Administrative Review Board WIU CQlled to order.

The Designated Military Officer (DMO) was sWQrn.

The BOilfdReporter wa.r sworn.

The TfIllIS/Qtor was sWQrn.

The Detainee enteredtheproceedings.

Presiding Officer: I understand you speak English and you understand English.

Detainee: I do.

Presiding Officer: You do. During the course ofthe proceedings ifat anytime you do
not understand what I am saying just let me know, but ifyou do (understandJ,just say I
understand sir or I understand. That way the translator will not have to repeat it to you.
Ifyou prefer he translate everythingthat's fine too. Which do you prefer?

Detainee: The first option is okay with me sir. ifI just listen without making any
comment then I understand. Should I [not] understand something I will just ask you to,,,,!!,~, ... i~('1","~!i:i,1

stop and ask him (referring to OL-21).

Presiding Officer: Then he will translate for you and that's fine. We can do everything
translated but since you understand us then there is really no need.

The Presiding Ojflcer annowu:edthe Cb/tVenlng allthority andpllrpose ofthe
Administrative Review Boardproceedbrgs.

Presiding Officer: Understood?

Detainee: Understood.

The AflmlnistraJive ReviewBOilfd members were SWQrn.

The AssistingMiHtary Officer (AMO) WIU sWQrn.

The Presiding 0fJ1CU asked the Detainee Ifhe wishes to make a statement IInder oath.
(Muslim oath offered).

Detainee: I do, I want to make my statement IUIder oath.

The Detainee acceptedtaking the Muslim oath.
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The Presiding Officer readthe hearing instructions to the Deminee andconfirmed that
he untkrsrood.

The AssistingMililary Officerpresented the Enemy Combatant Notificotionform,
Exhibit Ee-A, to the Administratit>e Review Board.

Presiding Officer: This was read to you back in February and they probably went aver it
with you I just want to make sure you,understand. It's a notification ofwhen they
notified you that yoU were an Enemy Combatant, do youremember that?

Detainee: Yes, I remember, yes.

The As$istlngMiliuuy Offu:erpresentedthe Enemy Combatant Election Form, Exhibit
EC·B, to the Administrative Review Board.

Presiding Officer: Assisting Military Officer please read your comments from the Enemy
Combatant Election Form and the Detainee comments we will use when we go through
the Unclassified Summary [ofEvidence].

Assisting Military Officer: The Detainee's ARB interview was conducted on 13
December 2005 and lasted. 140 minutes. After reviewing the ARB's purpose and
procedures, the Detainee said that he understood the difference between the CSRT and
the ARB. The Detainee was read the Arabic translated. Unclassified Summary of ,,';Wll,n:<k)',(!,.W',' /,'i"U)(,

Evidence. When asked ifhe wauted to attend the ARB, present a. written or oral ~:(dfi.l:;;v"'J:\"K:iS<t'JIWi!'JJ!.!. '
statement, orhave the AMO speak on his behalf, the Detainee said, he would attend the ,. ,,, ..• '.
board and present an oral statement He stated that at the ARB be would ailswer any
questions in English. The Detainee was very courteous, and attentive. He elected to take,. ','f"F"".,,, ,,,:.,,,,, V,'!.' •
a copy ofthe Arabic translated Uoolassified Summary ofEvidence and an English . ':c",,~!i~:'

version for his review.

Presiding Officer: {Are] we good so far'I

Detainee: So far so good.

The DesignatedMilitary OfficerpreseJIted the UnclassifiedSIlmItIiI1'J' ofEvidence,
ExhibilDMO-l. the FBIRedactlon MeJlWrandllm, DM0-2, ClTFRedaction'
Memo1'01/dum, DM0-3, and the Terrorist Organl:at1on Reference Guide, DM0-4 to
the Administrative Review Board.

The Designated Military OfflCt!1' statedthat a copy ofthese exhibits hadbeen
previously dlstriblded to the As$istlngMilItary Ojficerfor presentation to the Detttbtee.

Presiding Officer: Go ahead and translate the whole thing until I review it

Detainee: I just need the last one because 1don't know what it is about.

20935
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Presiding Officer: He gave me four unclassified documents. One is the Unclassified
SumtnaIy ofEvidence, the second one is a redaction form from the FBI, and the third one
is a redaction form from the Army Criminal Investigative Command. Are you familiar
with what redalltion forms are?

Detainee: I think.

Presiding Officer: It is where they take out information that they don't want you to see.

Detainee: Okay.

Presiding Officer: The forth one is The Terrorist Organization Reference Guide. It talks
about different terrorists organizations that the DepartmentofHomeland Security and
.Customs and Border Protection had back in January 2004, where they classified a list of
organizations as terrorist organizations. One ofthem is covered in the unclassified
summary.

Detainee: Yeah, yeah. Okay.

The Presldmg Officer noted.from the Enemy ComlHztllltt Election Form thmthe
Detainee "'llItted to respondto erich itemofthe informationfrom the Unclanijied
Summary os It ",osprtSented..

Presiding Officer: I note that you have cho5Cn to respond to each item of the
Unclassified Summary as it is presented. Is this correct?

Detainee: It is.

Presiding Officer: You also want the assistance ofthe Assisting Military Officer as
needed I presume.

Detainee: Yes.

Presidiog Officer: Okay. At this time I will instruct the Designated Military Officer to
summarize the Unclassified Summary to you and after he goes through a point you can
then respond. Once we notice you are through answering his question we will go to the
next item. Okay? He is going to read the Unclassified Summary to you and there lire a
Dumber of items. He will read one item and you can respond to that ifyou'd like and if
you don't just ask him to go to the next item and he will.

Detainee: I planned it so, ifyour honor does not have anythiog against it that my AMO
and I have planned that I wrote very, very briefanswers to each item ofthe Unclassified
Summary and after he answers those questions I will also give a response. Just to explain
and to demonstrate and prove to you why it is yes or it is no.

Cl:o:t't:;S
'" '\')~'f<"{mti),,_ "'" H i£;:"~"~n"i'f
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Presiding Officer: Okay, DMO you will read the comment and AMO for those responses
you have answers to all you need to do is piekup at whatever the Detainee said. You
don't need to read in response to.....just give us his responseto it because the DMO is
going to read the items. It looks like number one is the only one he didn't respond 100.

Assisting Military Officer: No sir, there are a couple of them he didn't respond to. He
will just answer them when we get to them.

Presiding Officer: Okay, I am going to give you an opportunity [to respond] after each
one whether the AMO has something or not. I would just ask that you say no comment.

The DesignatedMIlitary OJjieergllVl! a briefdescription ofthe contents ofthe
UnclassifiedSUltl1tlary ofEvidence, ExhibitDMo-l to the Administrative Review
Boardto ossist the Dettl1Jlee with answering the statements.

Presiding Officer: DMO please summarize the information fur the Detainee and allow
him time to respond or allow the AMO time to respond and then the Detainee.

Designated Military Officer: (3) The following primary faclors favor continued
detention: (3.a) Commitment (3.a.1) In 1992, the Detainee traveled to Gardiz,
Afghanistan to fight and was assigned to a mortar battery.

Detainee: That's correct.

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.2) The Detainee actively recruited for jihad from 1992­
1997. The Detainee felt it was an important function and would often speak ofjiblld
while he preached at mosques in Germany.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee elaimed he did not reemit but preachedjihad from 1992·
93. After 1993, the Detainee's passion faded because he had a wife and family, college
and his life. The Detainee confmned this sllllement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.3) Based on the Detainee's advice, an individual in
Duisburg, Germany traveled to Afghanistan for weapons training and to join the armed
Talihan forces. The Detainee arranged for this individual to meet with Usama bin laden
and the individual swore allegiance to al Qaida. The individual became an important and
influential al Qaida member.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee says it did not happen. The Dettl1JIee confirmed this
statement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.4) While in Germany, the Detainee worked with a
friend who recruited people to go fight jihad in Afghanistan.

20937 UNCLASSIFIEDIII C~.
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AMOlDetainee: The Detainee said this must be Ashra Al-Nahass. He is a close friend,
but he did not help him. The friendship was in 1999. The Detainee confl1'lnedthis
statement

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.5) In December 1999, the Detainee became the Imam
at a mosque in Montreal, Canada. The Detainee thought that the Algerian Armed Islamic
Group and the Salafis might have a presence at that mosque.

AMOIDetaim:e: The Detainee stated, that he did not become the Imam. He has the
Koran memorized and during Ramadan he lead the prayer. Within two weeks lIasni
Mobsen introduced him to the mosque. He has no sympathies ofthe Algerian Armed
Islamic Group and did not go to the mosque because ofthis group. The Detainee
completely sympathizes with the Salafis. The Detainee confirmed this statement

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.6) An aI Qaida operative identified the Detaim:e as an
al Qaida facilitator who played apart in recruitingjihadists to fight in Mghanistan and
Chechnya and to become suicide hijackers in the west. The Detainee convinced the al
Qaida operative and three future World Trade Center suicide hijackers to undergo al
Qaida hasic military training in Mghanistan.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee stated, that this is Ramzl bin Al Sheeb's statement and not
his words. The Detainee took a polygraph and Al Sheeb refused. The Detainee says it
shows he is telling the truth. The Detainee wants to read the Commission book on 911. "'J'
fle says it will tell the troth about Al Sheeb. The Detainee conj1l'med this statement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.7) An aI Qaida operative stated that the Detainee
facilitated the operative's initial travel to Afghanistan and his initial introduction to
Usama bin Laden.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee says, this is probablyjust an extension ofAl Sheeb's
statement. Either way it is false. The Detainee confirmed this statement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.8) An Islamic extremist stated that he attended
meetings in the Detainee's house on numerous occasious with a future suicide bomber
and an al Qaida operative.

AMOJDetainee: The Detainee stated, this is Karim Mehdi. a very good friend and that
Karim made the statement and it is not correct. The DetaJnee confU'medthis statement

Designated Military Officer: (3.a.9) The Detainee swore loyalty to Usama bin Laden in
1990.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee stated, in March 1991 he swore loyalty to Usama bin
Laden through one ofUsama bin Laden's recruiters. The Detainee does not want to say
the recruiter's name. The Detainee confirmed this statement.

20938 UNCLASSIFIEDIlfii@.WQI
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Designated Military Officer: (3.b) Training (3.b.l) The Detainee was trained in the use
ofweapons and terrorist tactics inUsama bin Laden's training camps in Afghanistan.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee stated, that it waS only one camp, not multiple camps and
that he did not train in terrorist tactics. The Detainee confirmed this statemetd.

Designated Military Officer: (3.b.2) In January 1991, the Detainee trained for six weeks
at Camp Farouq, located near Khowst. Training consisted ofphysical exercises and
weapons t1'aining on the AKA7, Seminov, Uzi, M-16, Makarov pistol and rocket
propelled grenades.

AMOIDetainee: The Detainee stated, among other light weapons. The detainee
conflnned this statement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.c) Connections/Associations (3.c.1) From 1993 through
1999, the Detainee was taskedby an individual to setup a radio broadcasting station in
Sudan, to assist in counterfeiting money, especially United States currency, in Kandahar,
Afghanistan, and to help establish greater Internet connectivity between Sudan and
Kandahar. TheDetainee denied taking part in any ofthese taskings.

AMOIDetainee: The Detainee stated, that this was refuted at the CSRT and that this
allegation was removed. The Detainee had asked the Intelligence COIIl11tunity to C01!'.!%,P ; ,.~.' J~""m".
a witness. The Detalnee confirmedtliis~t.

Designated Military Officer: (3.c.2) The individual who tasked the Detainee was one of
Usama bin Laden's key operatives. ..'i',."",,'"n01''",'''''

AMO!Detainee: The Detainee says this individual had no authority to task. The
Detainee was asked to help with the broadcast. He wants to call this individual as a
witness. The Detainee does not want to say the name ofthis individual. fie Detainee".".,.,."
conflnne4 this sttzteJnent.

Designated Military Officer: (3.c.3) The Detainee was involved in money laundering
activities. The Detainee wired United States currency three times for one ofUsama bin
Laden's operatives.

AMOIDetainee: The Detainee says, that be was never involved in money laundering. He
helped his cousin wire some money twice to his cousin's f8m.ily. 7,000 German marks.
The third time the detainee refused. The Detainee confirmed this statement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.cA) The Detainee stated that he attended a mosqne in
Duisburg, Germany where the directorwas the leader ofthe Egyptian Islamic Jihad in the .
area.

Detainee: That's correct.
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Designated Military Officer. (3.d) inlent (3.d.l) The Detainee said that his goal while in
Afghanistanwas to become a martyr by dying for Islam. However, the Detainee would
fight in a battle and there would not be another one for months, thereby reducinghis
chances to be martyred.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee says, that to die as a martyr is correct. To this day he still
wants to die as a martyr. The Detainee does not want to kill any innocent people,
including Americans. The Detalnet confirmed this statement.

Designaled Military Officer: (3.d.2) The Detainee is a suspected facilitator of the failed
millennium bombing conspiracy.

AMO/Detainee: The Detainee says, this is complelely incorrect and was refuled at the
CSRT. He wants to call Aimed Rassam and the Uniled Stales Intelligence as witnesses.
Tbe Deklinu confmttedthis stakment. .

Designaled Military Officer: (3.e) Other Relevant Data (3.e.1) in January 2000, the
Detainee departed Canada to travel to Mauritania. On the way to Mauritania, the
Detainee was detained inDakar, Senegal where he was questioned and released after four
days.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee says, that he was not released. He was turned over to
Mauritanian authorities. The DettUnee confirmedthis staternR;nt"n~gjf;.

Designated Military Officer; (3.e.2) in Apri12000, the Detainee traveled from
Mauritania to Gennany where he was detained for three weeks and questioned
German authorities.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee stales, that this is correet. However, it was because of
fraud, not terrorism. The Detflinee confl1'RUld this stDtement.

Designated Military Officer: (3.e.3) In April 2000, the Detainee [eft Gennany and
uaveled to Mauritaniawhere Mauritanian government officials seized his passport.

Detainee: That's correct but it was in May 2000 not April.

Presiding Officer: It was in May not April?

Detainee: No, look at it your honor, in April I spent one month injail cell. How could 17

Presiding Officer: Thank you.

Designated Military Officer: (3.e.4) in September 2001, the Mauritanian Secwity
Service detained the Detainee after the 11 September 2001 attacks in the United States.

20940 UNCLASSIF1EDllfJeeS
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AMOlDewnee: The Detainee states that he turned himselfover 1l> the Mauritanian
government. The Detoinee confl17lU!dthis st8teJltmt.

Designated Military Officer: (4) The following primary factors favor release or transfer:
(4.a) The Detainee denied having knowledge ofthe attacks in the United states priOtto
their execution on 11 September 2001, and also denied knowledge ofany rumors or plans
offuture attacks onthe United States or U.S interests.

Detainee: That's correcl

Designated Military Officer: (4.b) The Detainee statedtbat he did not know ofUsama
bin Laden's operative's involvement in terrorism when he transmitted money for him.

AMOlDetainee: The Detainee says, this is cornel It is the same incident with his cousin
and helping him send money to his cousin's family. The Det41Itee conjiTmed this
statement.

Designated Military Officer: (4.c) The Detainee strongly denied thathe had helped
anyone travel to Chechnya or Mghanistan.

Detainee: That's correct

Designated Military Officer: This concludes the Unclassified Summary ofEvidence. . ··~')'I1(1,e'i! I i~dJm;

The AdministrativeReview BtHlrd went into a closedsession to dlscllSS sensitive ,'hCfi.<lV;,"C11/"i"',!iU"" ./,:",;,;'14
information. The boardrecon'l'elled tJle unclassifiedportion at 194Zhrs, 15 December
2005•.

The DesltpUltedMllitIup Officer conjiTmed thathe hadnofurther unc/assfjkd ."f"''J''~·'«r~1'me<l1i ,ediu,,j
information and requested a closedsession to present classified information re1ewmt Ui' "' , ,,"iM P"':""jm; 'ii ·m'.;,\,",
the disposition ofthe Detoinee.

The Presiding Officer acknowledged the request .

The Presiding Officer opened theAdministrative Review BtHlrd to the Detainee to
present information with the assistonce ofthe Assisting M'J1ittuy Officer.

Assisting Military Officer: Yes sir, the Detainee would like to make an oral statement
and a written statement

Presiding Officer: Okay, let me see what he wants to present and then I will explain to
you how I want you to present it

The Presiding Offu:er reviewed the documents the Detainee wantedtopresent to the
board.
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~tainee: When the CSRT invited me to attend the hearing they confronted me with very
much the same thing you have confronted me with. I said no that is outrageous. I have
done some oftbat; most oftbat I hsve not done. I said 1have witnesses and 1can prove
it, they said how? I said U.S. Intelligence, militaIy intelligence, my ex-wife and so many
wilnesses. They said they would use U.S. Intelligence as a witness but you let them
decide on what they were going to teU us. There were thirteen allegations and they
erased nine and the [remaining] four sir, you have. Only those four are my allegations. 1
really don't Wlderstand why they have gone back [to the thirteen] and we hsve already
been through and put the allegations I was not chsrged with on this. It does not make any
sense to me. It looks like O.J. trial.

Presiding Officer: The unclassified is stuffthat various agencies hsve given us to be
allowed to use and present to you. They were classified at one time and they unclassified
them and said this is what the Detainee can have or anybody else if in fact it gets
released. There is other information ofa classified nature thet they won't release to you,
but we mayhave access to it during our classified session. Even though they may have
had thirteen or so many allegations and narrowed it down only to four here in the CSRT,
those agencies may have given us a number of things, and say here you can read this and
this is what we consider important on this guy. You can contest them as you did in some
cases today and something you agteed to and we appreciate that. I am just trying to give
you and idea ofwhy some ofthis is repeated again.

Detainee: Why should it be repeated ifit ha~ already been refuted. Here you can read
the synopsis and it reads very clearly, ''DUling the recess the recorder modified exhibit
Rl ofthe Unclassified Sunrmary ofEvidence deleting a number ofallegations.» So why
did they delete them back then and they say I am right and the guy who wrote this was
wrong and now the same things hsve coml' back. 1don't Wlderstand that doesn't make
sense to tnI', ifyou could explaIn it, I really want to understand.

Presiding Officer: Well aga1n, they probably could not find enough stuffto substantiate
the allegations that they took out. They are not saying they are right or wrong, they are
just saying they didn't have the evidence to support them. Then they were just able to
hang their hats on these four things in paragraph three which [states], Detainee was
previously determined an enemy combatant and this determination is based on the
infol'llUltion that the DetaInee was a member of the Taliban or al Qaida. Then it goes on
to say you admitted these four things; that you admitted to traveling to Afghanistan to
wage jihad; that your goal was to become a martyr and you did say that llglIin today. So
based on these and the other two things, you can read them as well as I can, that is what
they based their answer from the CSRT on continuing your detention as an enemy
combatant. Because they only had to meet certain criteria and that is wbst they did. Now
for today the Unclassified Sunrmary is full ofa lot of things you dispnted and yon're
offering this as an explanation that it shouldn't be there. We will weigh and listen to your
answers and I am sure we are going to haw a few questions for you in regards to it. You
mayor may not have answers to it, but 1know I have lit least two questions, so we will
get to that. I am not going~ try and guess why the agencies repeated those allegatiollJl in
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the unclassified summary again {this time) even though the CSRT dropped them. They
didn't really say but the deleted number ofallegations and modified exhibit RI [can be
submitted as exhibits]. They didn't say that they weren't true they justmodified them.

'the AssistingMilitIl1'J' ()jJicer submJttd the Detainee's CSRTexcupts as Exhibit EC­
Cto inchlde EC-Cl tmd EC-C2, copies ofthese exhibits have been provided to the
DesignatedMilitary QjJku.

Presiding Officer: Do you have some other documents you would like to present to the
board or are you just going to read something?

Detainee: No, no I have nothing.

Presiding Officer: Because ifthere are other things I would like to cover them with the
AMO because he will have to present them as an exhibit. Ifyou are not going to present
anything else, that's fine.

Detainee: No, I have nothing.

Presiding Officer: Comments and things like that we are still going to continue with but I
want to get through the exhibit portion.

Detainee: Okay.

Presiding Officer: Assisting Militsry Officer please reed the Detainee's additional
comments on the Enemy Combatant Election Form. "H' .,:d"lhl1)iJ0!,1'·'

Assisting Militsry Officer: The Detainee requests that he be released to Canada and that
his request be forwarded to Washington, D.C. The Detainee was told that a decision will
be made in Washington, D.C. and he will get an answer in the very near future. .",nil.·

Presiding Officer: Let me ask you this, you said you would like to be released to Canada,
is there some reason you do not want to be released to your home country?

Detainee: Well, I have a good reason; my country.turned me over, short cutting all kinds
ofdue process oflaw, like a candy bar to the United States. They sentme to Jordan for
torture and later on to Bagram and then to this place. So I think that is a good reason not
to want to go back to such a country.

Presiding Officer: So your concern is being tortured againwhen you go back?

Detainee: Not omy, I don't think that my country would torture me, I am not going to lie
to you your Honor. So let me explain this to you. Ifthe United States releases me to my
country and they agree on some formula that will for llUJelimit Illy freedom without any
reason, becanse in my country you do not need a reason to limit someone's freedom, and
I don't see any reason why my freedom should be 1iInited. For example, you have seen
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that my passport was taken and that I was forbidden to travel. rdid not appreciate it and
that is not a life. I [would have to] go everyday to tha police and sign papers, no. rwant
to go to a country where rCllll enjoy my freedom or I'll stay here. Please explain my
point to them (asking OL·21 to explain a previously discussed issue).

OL-21: He forgot to add one thing that he told us why Canada. It was because he had
the immigrant status there. And the immigrant status is almost like being a citizen, but if
you are outside ofCanada for more than six months you cannot take advantage ofthat
status. But he does not know ifin his case, because it was beyond his control, ifbe
stayed six months out of Canada ifhe still bas that status in Canada or not.

Presiding Officer: He does not know ifhe bas that status?

Detainee: I have the status and I have the papers. But it says [under] Canadian Law if
you stay outside the country for more than six months you are not safe. Then you cannot
go back to the country and you will have to reapply. But this was against my will
because I was put in jaiL So it's a problem, it'sjuata wish.

Presiding Officer: I was juatcurious why you didn't want 10 go back to your home
country and ifthere were some other extenuating circumstances that the State Department
could give consideration to when negotiating your transfer.

Detainee: I just want you to understand because it is key for me that you, the board,
understand the case, the heart of the case. Forget about me being detained or released,
forget about it. Juat try to understand why I am here and all ofthe circumstances
surrounding my capture and my detention, I would like for you to understand. I asked at
the CSRT to be tumed over to the United States ofAmerica, but when I learned from my
American friends here, they said no, no you were in Cuba and for God sake you are a
suspected terrorist and the United States would not accept you. I will not force you to
take me. I feel like I deserve [it] because I was honest, cooperative, and I was
forthcoming. I may be wrong; obviously I am, so just turn me over to Canada.

Presiding Officer: Okay.

Detainee: In case you don't release me, then I know my address.

Presiding Officer: I understand you would like to give a statement and you justdid. Is
there anything else you would like to tell us? !fnot does that conclude your s1atement?
Ifyou have additional comments you would like to give us you may.

De1ainee: Yeah, yeah.

l>residing Officer: At this time I understand yOIl have something you would like to read
to us, you may begin reading your comments at this time.

The Deminee made thefoUolI'ing staJelm!nt:
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DcWnce: FUlltofall why did1he U.S. In1ell~ &'l't 011 my neck? Why did they pick
me out? Why did theypick me and notjust III1)'body limn the atreels? They pi<:bd me
out fur 'ItlllS0Jlj and 1will eotpIaln them to you why. It goes backto tare 1998 and January
1999 when I reeeiveda call limn aCOJljin ofmino, whote IlllIllCI don't want to lIICI1lion
his name. I learned Iatcr thatmy comwas using UiiIlIIIabin Laden's satdlite phOllll
thatwas intercepted. He calledme and anotbllr cousin ofmine named Ould Mohammed.
I was in Gemlany and our other COll$mwas inMauritania, so the United States [told] the
Gcrman.t that I was an atQaida operative. They knew il was notUsamabin Laden's
voice, they knew itwas me. Mohammedwas captured in Murilania and stayed in jail
fortwo mOlllhs for iDIcn:ogsliona. I wasn'l captured, but I am BIII'O I was followed by the
Oennanpolice landfor] German IntllUlgencc. I didnot know anything about itback then,
okay. My couain bad alWilYll been in lIlOdaralo CODIllCt, he called me more and1_
IcDewblsaddress and be calledmemorc furdifl'erentn:asons. We _ [also] brotbet·ln·
laws; we llIllIried the same stston (my furmerwifc is his wife's sister). The sisters they
want to contacI each other and he also COIlllIctodmc to helphim transfer mollCY to bill .
filInily inMaurltlmilI bccauIIc teclmlc:ally when he was in Sudan it is notpo!IIIIDlc to wire
mollCY limn Sudanto Msmi1lmia. Mauri1aJliaberiIdDll doos notwoik; I <!on't bow
about the blinking ill 8ucIan,bat I <!on'tthlnk it Wllil advanco. So he had to send me the
moJlIlY to my account ill Germany and I would phyaically.1he mOJlllY to IIOIlIll ofmy
friClld$, who will give it to his:llmilly (the cousin's :llmilly) illMauritania. I did this twlcc
in Jato 1998 [l)otaInec pwllCd to rcco1lcet the time fi'ame ofthe lraDsfers]. It WIllI

between late 1997 and 1998, lelmo {think] It bMbeeD a loog time so I don'twant'fugiVil .
you [the wronginformatlonJ.·'~('Iji:i('o;:.;)i·i"w'u"

PresidingOfficer: We understand ifYOu are offa little bit. then approximateIy:'.''''''·

Detsinee: IIwas an llll10lIllt lIfOIIIld 57,000. They said hm:l American money, I don't
UIldorstanIL

01..-21: 7000 IIIlIrlcs, not dollars.

Detainee: Okay, dollars I am WI:OIli- It tIllys here somowbere "the DetaiDce wired United
States currencythree times for ODe ofUsama bin Laden operatives." It cIocs not make
_tome.

PresidiDg Officer: What they tilly is that you were involved in money laundering ...
sctIvitios, -MIlch ifl hlrve SOOOor7000 dollan and I give it to him. Thenhe dill1i:11iUtCBit"" . '.' .
to [hl$] brothers, motllers, mtersmI coUllins then I am trying to launder it through them.

AssIsiing MlliWy Ofliccr: I lbink what hill ilISuc is though, is the dill'ercncc wberc be
didn'thave U.S. dollanbehad [DeuIJcb] marks. Where theyare saying 1110 equivalent
milJht be 4000 U.S. [dollars] to 7000 LDeulJoh] Marks.

Detsinee: Exactly, AMO i. comet. Here is the dcsI because my cousin and my lxothor·
In-lawwant to SClId80me money forbls:llmilly and he asked me [fur help]. How the hell
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could I know iibe stole it or U8aIIIA bin Laden gave it tohim, or wberevcf the bell be got
this lIlOIIey, tbat was llOl\l'l ofmy blllrilltsB. Itis not IllY polic)' to lISlepeople where they
got the money.

Plcsidin8 Officer: Hejust asked you to do bini a favor?

Detaillec: Yes, and I did it.

Presiding Officer; Okay.

DctaM' Husked mea thinI. tim.c, they said I did it tluee times andtbat'snot comet
The third time itwas around October 1999, I &Ill dead ll'\lftl because mybrotherWIIll with
me. Then my brother told me "Who is ee1llng yo1ff" he Is IllY olderbrother and I IaiO
"my cousin", He said "What is be uIdng you?" and1said ..Ho is lllikiDJ me to help him
wire money tohis :famiIy" and my brother IIllid"Nol" Then I toldmy cousin I could not
wire the IllOllCY andhewas IIpICt. I would like fer yOl1 to 1'IIftr to the intercepted
telephone convmatlonwith me and bini to prOve my point.

Pmiding Officer. I &Ill not SII1» I have tbat available to me bllt I will take your word fer
it.

Dctsinee: Okay, well neither &Ill I. Okay, bllt that Is what!lapJleMd anyway. Of\lOUISe
the Amcrlcans were intctelted inme and theY told the Oemums towttchm~~y.Bm ...
I have hadsueb good conduet in Gcm:umy the GemJans never even bolhered me.to ask
anj' questions. They went to the Imam ofmy Mosque and they told him I had~n
with torroristand be laughed, that's whathe told me, 1bathe Ianghed. I said, "I don't
think so", They said itwas notn:aIly a "Hof', it ill notIJiIIghot about it but wejust have
the I'llflOI1 to tell you and we will takeyour word for It. Then he toldme, he advised me,
"Oe:llllm Intdllgenee came IIlld showed me your pictul1llllld IIIlid youhave COlI.1Xtwith
terrorlst... I said. "1was aliIIld." 'Ihis was the first time thatI hcsrd IIOIIlCthiJlIliko that.
For somebody to have never dealtwith the police and intclUgem:c1bey may get sc:t:ed, .
butnow I am not scaredbecause I &Ill so used to~ andpolice being"me
andsaestlngme puttiIIg me injsil. I willlhow youguys.you willnot be yourselfwben
the police are behind you. Anyway, I was seated, he toldme hehas experiencewith
them, 80 80 to them and I can an'IIlge a meeting with you. Te1I1bem lndeod you wereln
Afgbanist.m in 1991 andFe'bnlary 1992 because they don't give a damn about that. lust
80 and tel1them IIlld they wllllcsve you in peace. I was aftaid IIlld I did not fonow hill
advice. 1sll!d no, no ifthey filld out1have been in Afg!wIistlln they could make trouble
with me becauso they bate people who believe injihad and go withjihsd even against
Russia. SO1WlUl aiiaid. All tho evidence was not in my merand then my Visa was
taken INlay. My!awyel' meued up, he mcssodup some IawycrJtuffand the Germans
would not exteDd IllY VIsa. 1Slid, "okay, I'll 80 to Cal\ad&". upon tfIo advice ofmy
friend,whom I have atrcedy told you abc1ll. lie was my student inGemIaDy and he
immiptcdto Canada in 1m01' 1m. He came tovisit me in Germany and he said,
"Canada is amazing Tbere is no tllCism, they speak French, and it is just a very
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advanced COIIIllry. YOIl wiI1bave II job at the snap of II finger," I said " lllko Gtnoany"
and be said "It's jllSta possibility, go for it and apply for Canada and you wiI1 have tho
Canadian papers ifGermany doesnot accept you for some IelllIOIl, thIm go to Canada" I
docidedto goto~onFrlOay,November26.1999, Okay, ItWilll shor1Iybllforethe
begilmlng ofRamadan andmy ftieIld said "We need you=eln Canadabellall8llWC
have no Hafcz." Explain to them what Ha.1ilz is (asking 01.-21 to explainwhat IIHafez
is).

OL-21: Hafez is !be personwho memorized !be wtwleKoran and when we pray we pray
verses oftheKoran and you have to memoriu it. DurIng Ramadan there isprayer and
after the fifth aalitwe pray anoxwndeclprayer for about and hourandba1fto two hours.
DurlngRamadan you have to _ite tho entiI:e Koran. youItalt from the beginning and
when. you pray he keepa mWing !he K01'IIIl and he is called the Hafez, II personwho bas
memorized !he wholeKoran.

Presiding otlietr: Andyou me fltmiliar with this?

DeQlnee: 1am one. inArabic COWltrlI\ll thml NIl ocdIea but InB1Itllpe and Canada one
is vm:y rare. I reluctantly aceepted the offerbeca'use in Germanythey were bot1lllrlng me
II lot. SomlllimCII during Ramadan I would pray for two I110Ilths and it WillI jllSt100 llUlCh
for me. in Canada they brought llItI to this bigMosque and they testedme and saidbe is
good. The Imam said I !lave II trip to Ubited Bl1Iirala andI would lib for you to lead the
prayer and I said okay. I lead the puyer I1urlngRam'ldm that's it. I WlIllnot ~Jll'lam,of
the Mosque, so flIr. SO good. Some peoplo who wore vt:r:l importaIl1 to intel!iB~,i;?;(c~ '''''0''''
attmded this Mosque; pooplc Whom tho inte'llipnco community WillI~:~,ll'"l'';;~',"""L,
atlebcling this Mosque _111lId tho prayer. It is II1hrec storyMosque where libtcn,
thousand people couldpre.y lit tho SlIDe 1lmc, okay.

Presiding Officer: ADd we me inCanada?

Detainee: Canade, Y88.

Presiding Officer: Didn'twant to lOBe you.

DeIaInce: Plcue, I wantyou guys to UIlI!eIlItand my story okay, bec:allSllltreally doesn't
matter ifthoy release llItI orDDt, IjllSt WlIIIt my storyu:ndentood. Okay, I WlIIIt to get it
offmy chest. Tho MosqUll i1Beifwas nota 1hrect or impor1mt, it waa IImodmte
Mosq1lll.

Prcslding Ofilc:<lr: But some people thet tho intelligulce oommunitybad interest in _
attending it?

UNCLASSIFIED/~

Dt.tainec: Yes, fOfl:loly. l1ell you why. People, bad people always 'Wllllt to blend in II
crowd so ifthe MOSQ1IC is II wry big MosqIlC the 00_ofII person ieltinB pic:kcdup
me vm:y low. Tho Mosque is also classifiedas non-extremi$t. Is that comet, I don't
know. ExtremiJt, not dangerous because for you guys ext=Iist is a vm:y easy stamp to
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put on~ They were not really intmatcd inme but !bey _ inlmsted in
certain people who atteDded !be Moaqae. So look at me, Ihave contact with USllllla bin
Lad!m's operative, who was bolpingIaundermoney, is DOW inc.wIa altending a
Mosquewherewe believe a very daDgerous pup is attending lIIId he isoven the Imam
ofthe Mosque. somcllIilIg is going on.

Presiding Officer: It's notlooldng good?

UNCLASSIFIED/~

Delailleo: No, It's not looking good at all. Itwill lookworst than that. Then the
Canadians sale. they have _ to take we o£ Okay, Decembel' 14, 1999 aNigerian
called, Almod Rassam a former iDhabillmtofMontteal~ Ilivod, lried to ClOSS the
bonler iIIlo the UnitedStIleS cazrying ilbomb. He WIIIl1edto lIltld:.lhe United StIleS
during the millllllllium; they caIllt the mlI1elmIum plot, thelnfamous millennium plot.
Tho Americans capWrod him, okay athe borclerbcliml be did llIl}'lhlDg. Are any ofyou
tilmUiar with tllislltory? Obviously tho Ml\lOf is, excuae me the Lieutelll\llt Colonel. So,
they capturod him IIDd they said waita minute thilI guy is from Monueal andhe Is a
member ortho Algerian lsIatnle G1oIJp, which attonIl& the Maolnla1. Mosque,which is
right !lOWbeing leid by me who Is in connection with an~w ofUaamabinLaden.
Why did he come from Oormsny at thilI time? He is the head, he ill the Imam, he ill the
General, and a poteatjally wry danaetoUll guy. I apeak £Ow~ IIDd I am a
Telwnnmunieations Bnginoc:rllld Iam dsngetous, I don't !mow why becllUlle I am a
pretty lazy guy. They told the Owdim. thmt I WlI!l the llUY behind all oftllill. AImed
RBssam~ to1lIIk, be tookbll! s&Am~ llOO be didn't WI anytblng lltal;4idi~k'l::"1i;!iC,,,;,hj,i;':i': iC,'iJm,,,iRl". ~1ij\1
talk laterbutvaguely. The Qmadi_Ull crazy they didn'tlllllp the BUY, 110 ifthey{m~jv.:CT;;)C0'I));;ajl~M@@ (f"'J;~)7,tilr,~,,(,'"

wanted to~ like they~ up to llODIOlhiIlg. So they-wry jumpy. 1'hc?' ' 'ti"?'
--~m·...- M"·""" mtho poli- - "'. hoU1'll--' ...- m·.... twoho'- mmy ""'1"""" -,,,,,..,,,, • "JiiI.~I"~'" I.I.R ~-" __,.t:/'i. am..JW~J ~ 'lW ·.. ,·..,.....'u,."'., \!l~.'t"="!>,,,".·,,~'i"·,,,,· ...·,,.n....•.• ·•.;,....,,,,;~,,~·(·'
apatIIlIeIlt, wry smalhin:y hole•• 11Iey didn'tknow I 1I&W1bembut I was ulcep and ·,5"" ' '5G,'H,:,":C",T;:"":,, :
whenI WIlko upthe BUY was outside putting tiny l1tllIlleI'a!I in the hole. I called th6polieo
lIlld1koew it _ not my neJshbor itwas inteIIiplllCt. But I said, my neighbor Is putting
two holea in two bedrooms, one inmy !OO!I'lm....s{room] aIId one inmine, why would he
do dult to me? Then !be pollco told me to put gIne in the hole. IIltatlld athim IIld said,
"Did1ask YOll your advice Of lIOIIllIthlIIg?ItIs a crime behind thilI." Y01IT honor, I was
just 1aU8hin&1didn'thaVe any problems that they _ wak:hing me. 1told my brother1
was goillg to make.joke Of soDllllhing. People say I am very i\mny SlId light 110 1didn't
take itwry lIllIiIllllly, but the polieo Royal Mounted Police ofCJlnada. it's like FBI and
tbIly came and interrogaled me. I was scared to heIl, they asked me do I know Aimed
Rassam, I88id "No", SlId then they IIlIiddoyouknowthill guy and I said "NOoNo". I
_so scared I _ shaking IIld they rolC88ed to th6 Americ.Bns that I was very scmed. I
was not asec1 to ibis itwas the &lit time I bad been interropted lIlld ljult wanted to lIIay
out ofwuble and mske 1111'0 I told !be truth. But they _ watohingme in a veryugly
way. It is okay to be watohed but It is DOt okay to see the people who sre watchiDg YOa.
Itwas very clumsy, but they WIll1ed tQ give the message that we sre watchingyou.
Okay, scrow it, it·is not problem thqCIIlwatchme. If2000 starts they were sre afraid
that I~d ldllllOUle peopIo. After 2000,11Jl.ouaht they would leave me alone but that
was not comet. Attho~ time membel'l ofmy famlly_ taUn by the Mauri1anisll
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Intelligence and inlm'ogatlld aboutthe millennium pkJt. 1didn't know that my wife wan
intmogabldand thatmy brotherswere interrogated. They didn't tell me llecause they
were scared but they said," What are you doing over in CAnada?" I said nothing but look
for ajob. And my mnily decided I needed to getbacktoMaurltaDlanbeca.uall this guy
mustbe in a w:ry blIdOl1l'l:toDmellt and weWlIIlt to IllMl him. We don't care ifthey put
him injall hero (Mauritanianjall)butwe need to gethim outoflrouble. He hi
aurroundcd bybadpeople. that is whatmy family tbouaht anddecided1should come

. home. And they told me that my l'IlO1JIor wan sick. My ea:-wifc calI.ed me and she wan
crying and she said" Eitberyou get me to Canada or)'Oucome backto MlIUritanill." I
said "hey take iteasy." I didn't like this life in Caoada.l couldn't~oymy fn:cdom and
beingwatehcd is not w:ry good. I hlItIld Canada and I said the woM is very bard hero. I
tookoffon Friday, 21 Jmum:y 2000; I took fIigbl from Montreal toBmssels. then to
Dakar. The C''lIlacliw were _cd by the AmeriCID Inllllligencc to arrest me and the
C_di.ns asked. "Wbero isyour llVideIIce?" The Canadi8llll said we cmmot arrest
someone withoutpaperwork. 1'1lCln the Americans asked" Canyou at least wihim
wberlMrhe goes?" So they musthave told them I left and tookII flight from MoDtrcaI to
Brusscla to Dakar. I didn't take II mBbt dlrectly to MauritaniabccausIIl Dakar is highly
viaited and the flights are c:hcapet. Dakar is about270 miles away and otigiDally my
family, my two b:rotllerll were going to picltme up from the airport. So llIr, so good
UlIllentood? 1told them the1Iig1rtnumbllrand everything and that the flightwan on
Friday. The Amcrie.w have obviously seen me III IIpoteo1W threat. They were SUTe
that 1was behind the millennium plot because ofall thec~.

Pxcslding Officer: But they just couldn't prove it.

Detainee: Yell, they WlIIlted to get me amsted at least. But they WlIIlted to getme in a
pIp wbl:re they could arrest me. Belgium well1d not~with them, Canada
wouldn't cooperate wi1h them because they IlllIlded II smo\dng g1lIl, butDIIk.v WIll II very
good choice. They waI1lld and I stayed 12 h01l:rs in Belgium and nobody bothmd me.
When1got to Dakar they IImlItedme in the _ oflaw. They took me to apollce
station and they aaid, "Wehave w:ryheavy information Il/JlIillAtyou, the milleIlnium
plot" 1WIll sayingno, it'a not so. Ijlllltden!cd It But the Amoiic:a:os were not
inIprcslIed at all wi1h the 1'Ilaults ofthe intarosation. To be truthful,l was not vrJrY
uutbfill wi1h Senegal'. il:dorrogators but not wi1h the thing they were askiog me about.
They ukcd ifIwas trained injiJwl and I wid them no,which wail not correct. I justdid
not want to give them more OYidcDee 10 get myself1lurDlld. I was in a foreign COUDlIy of
Scocgal aDd I WlIDted to be t1Imed over to theUnited States right away bccauio I lcnew at
some point the Uni!cd States wouldbow thst I didn't do itand they well1d release me.
InSencgallbey mIaht torture me and I don't 1Ilce tobe IOrt'Ilrcd. Stmegal didn't really
totlunl Jl!e becaufIC th/:nI W8lIIlOl any mUy lII1b8llm1ial mdeDcc. Aflllr:llve days,
SanegaI 8Ilid they could not keep me. 'They Illlid eithet give us prooforwe will release
him, but the Amcman aovemmClltwmkod it out so I could be IICIrtbackto Msl1ri1llllla
and I WIlll scared. Okay to make a long ste1'y sbort.Maurilallia thoroughly invelItisabld
my__ I WIll fOl1hcoming and I said to just be bonclst~llSe it 1& no big deal in
Arahie coUlllries to go fight jib/ld and oome back. It Is IlObig deal like in Saudi Arabia,

lSN760
Enclosure (6)
Page 160f33

20949



I
.,~--_._ ..,.

UNClASSiFIEDJ1~

forAm.edcMlIInd.~ltln WIl)'blI tbiDf. 1f~Bab\11ba41Uy tbInltyouare
aoiDItokDl peoplo. Bllt lalll1~ I tQld~ I _InJIbIl4alld I mml bayat to 8iI1l
Li4c= IIIllIJ "'OI"JIbIuI but IbIhllll\ IlWIl)'10IIatiM sao.~ IIIlI4Iil:IItoo _ IUy IIIkt
thB.Y1I&'VllllOplOb1caI. 1tGtlald_'!"U1llIeAmed_uD4.,.lIllI4l1!ey WO'IIldIl.'t
tnt~Il'III'dq. ~iIIe~FB!~lIlm
.. _lIIIOlberA'1\Imlll&D~Gf'IlI'Il!G6(1)01).,
Ilbrphlllllllll80 1'IlI1lll1l1i~Jfl1oa1U1bIy WiIDlOd10_me~of~1mi
rIJlOlI. TbJy__oa..1i IDIi1f'ofII~ 2COO _ tbtIy~.. loa 10lD.7""abouttbllllllltall1l!llplQt,It-1fIIII'/ becaIIlt1Il d!dJ:l't~ lIOI!liIlI to do wilb
it!VIU torlhotm:dna Aa fllrllllYtRIJC'IlIIoIZ~jW 1iI~ I _notlilll
fbrtI..0CIIi"l1leollult tclldrl't!lel llWl!e4to llll :b~ll"h'l with 'd!=~ lowe
tbCIlt JlCIIlIlIlt. WIly lIhoII1d1tIIk to~ r.r:rItt l_'t_IIyou; Ill!dI1't come Ul1bi:
UIliIe4 Slates. WIly doJOllllClUtolllC1lll4uk_~ !hilt Is~lM3
'bhlldDlOlltlll~ tntlCOl11c!a'tSllYIt~ llllllllit\19~of~
betuIe lbe.y-acfaItobam.y. itlclldll'UllllllllerlMJlBI. II!IrcwIlm, lNttlw .
PBIdid_till.)I.' "If."t_1llltu ~wiIll1llel!lu I_'With
~ Bllt.,..,fblJClCIIll4Ftlba~ butlba1~ toNCl'l it
t1IIlIIuel-. 'MlWlItpod. hI4Illll.'tWwtl> B!Vc tUm1llIe~~1_
di~.......,"1U1IIIlIcr~t!ls%1didll't--' 'Ill6 ifill! left OIl
Pelnllyl1". I_......CIilP.~lr,1IIIt~saId.. Wflldlla·tl'llllllll
you !lO..,. W.baYellllllltmlllt~Ilr iii you." I UllII4Ilm1il WIIl\\t~_
~ TIitl1I11l!4" 1blIAml__bllp~:i1OO~llh!t1l~1JM::i&!hl"1~
\limy PIGOfIlO'WIlIIt1ioouW wa do'l" I WllilY 'IVlf& ll!et1~ F 100-,11_,
Ih__a:perIliDllI4 IJ"l*I='_lh1m1lC,P8l"""'.~" 1W_
letI &0 bIcIt 111I GaIaIlym!111It. 'I1wIlIIlW llilC 110Villa..I~1l\l!,l~ IllIlCllt
Ulkts IbaattWIlIll1.,...llI~ about)01ll'cue. MinDy~OCIU lIlllII~ lIIId
1bIy rdIIIIl tbtil.o tbeD1be11J'll'il~_It.....lq time IIl!lId YOIl- •
YOllf..tol!llllllpil_e-tIn~.ltbllpanof_~OOlll~.Do
)'OIlllllllaillliad 'JfNrIlclDoi'1 OlrlQI,IIO l!ar 110 ptd. l·uke4for ..i~Vlsalllld you
- SO 111I"B1lropM~. Wtq didI f&$ttlals Vila? h'.~Xdidl1'tWllllt Ie
to 10 the 0crlllW \IICIuIa.., boW.. Tbay 11Mlbt~ t!l'l!~)'ll!1­
we dcD"lWIIIllIII)'fI'OIIbIc.~_",. wD1lllltp~ IiV1P~I!loy
11I'O tdtIl:* So,1.",.\1108.Fa\D11III1'"P'I"t-aVlaa_1UIIId.VIla to SO
whee?~ Sooa.II IlMlhdla~1bIyput a1Illlu OIlllilC IIl4 too1tllllllo
jail. 'I1ley"4_ 'MI91lNl11la DlO for fmd, whIoIl_CCI1'6Cf. JcII4 t!lrl b1Id It_
about4000 (DeulIeb] MlaI:s,batthcpaobJeIn _ tlIatlfAXl1cmoaeyb~
peo,plf. wIII1t1_cIetrfpi"lJllf Cl\1!Il~" ItIIIIllt~ IlIlIId!dII't blow tnt
lbat _110 IlllWIC. JlyoQbnIk_law_)'lllIa'tbowit,1b&t'. yourproDlem.
'I1:lml ta DO__10 bGwtlwlPor ill.o.cm.ay.

=:0ftIcer: Y0ll1lllok~CIlt~ wlIIle you-11lIzliIlJ 1OVf<JWn

DcIlliooe: ElclacdT.

\
\
I
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PnIldiDJOfltaer. GoIeIlllI

Dotaicee: I to14t!lItlhaw_1lllmd 1110~l yet but thaySlid I¥I,1hIt'&1lOt lil1
--. You _ ptlllClaCY 'but1lGtIIlICkrIlle ti11e~J'ed"~ llIIIhrIIlCdlIor
litIe. 1.."l'!Ia ia lllUplllllllltllDto pill _ ia;.u."ItIs'*-7OIlbmtDO IIllltns:3
'III Otil:IDID1.:ro-oou!4poli d>1r,lIIIlaway fmIltllD law. IfIWlil1a4dreM1~
haftspllllldIrcc"Ill'.'*'-tml411ko1llIo ia lIllialllf,JorcrlnII. AJr:I'tNq1lloy
kept1llt lbMWIIIb _ t!lf.11111l1MCl!ll1llO to fillllOllfllo~4ar11!st'breeJIlIIlrlt .
IIIli1IIat_ Apll2000. III MaJ, ttOIIIl4llllllMay,IPld. "MIll DO COIIDlrY III~
m~. BIII'IIO ClItmD:Yab41110 1l1lOUt. ftIIII4 iWlllray stld.1f,oll glw tile
lnfmpetl'lll WI CIlI.'MlIk~, I IIIlW. "MuII 4o!l't.laIow~" 'I'!Iellllblryi­
1caft IIl8 JlM&lt. 'I!I'lIII aleS \0 iDy. I IllIlP3*"to MallIi1anfaIfIIIIlaolIIa to 'oll
XOUilIcll!ltJlI IlllJOlaI to be l'CUbcl1ll 'II!t11lW1ll~~. :Tblil1I WIIlllliel:k to
MlaIdllllla" \lit~ tol4\btm I!Iot lIllIlP'YIbwldbe &toppL l'ba
MIWlIlllllDab4-to_·totllom. 1WIIlllto1bapol.Ioo IlIl4 ibqtlllOk 'II!t1pauport
IllliINll"Jou--10," I IIIic1,."pod!" '1'Il= II frieIIll1 ofCllblefha!Id_~ 'WOIl1
withbls~NetIoul~to'WCldtut!llllir~lllO'rider. I W II good
1Ime, It_ WC&II:1lib-lbI.Jpei4 mo_ 1wa IIIllIIll B.bullt1IIIICIcoll1llatI
clldA'thaw1M hclom10uawtlm&1P1111aw to,oopowltlllt, IlO flr.r 10 good.
Sep!imber U·2001,_ UaIblclSlIllioI let dICPd_PIlOJIk -1ooJllIIc1brIDada.
The politaCI1led _ em l!epteIbc29* 1l1lOUt2300 lIo\InIm1Il8"

lr<:tIldi.Jl~0ilIcv. So ~ll'll::lOOl ~'_'lllnW!ll~ '1:t:fIl:lNfl

DclIlnoc: 1II1ll)'~.

PmId!stI Oflleer: IIIyorA'~
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because be saidhe WlllI golns to bring in blackpeople. I don't have problem with black
.people,balfofmy COUlItty is black people. He said "1 am going to bring In some blaclt
mothor:fuckm" and tbi» was my fust lime hearing tbeIe words, like what is a "mother
fac1ctI:"? Thati.notappropriate lm&Uagc 1llllD. He was very tilly; be toldme he batlld
J~ alto. I told him that'syourproblem IllllD. 1told him1have DO problem with the
J~ eitherman. Attyway, he laid Ilmowyouare apart ofthe mUJenoium plot. He
broughtme IIOIIlC lnten:eptcG COIMll'IIIllion llIldwhich I OllpIajned to you. They Wlll'e

intetl:eptingmy pbolle andmy malL ] expIalned itto mm. bcoautlo I was mlly scm
and ifyou get IlClIfCd evorythingyou say will be garbage,and thenbo10ft. InO<:tobe:r,
the Mauti1aniallt IOIeaaed me. ]weJlt back to my life. I thoughtoow I will have a
problem with my employcbecmae my employer would DOt take me bIlck bccauto I am
suspeCted oftem>rlsm. andthey laid they would take care ofthis. ID. frontofme while I
was sitliDg [there] the highott intelllgoDce guy in MamitaDla called my employc and said
that I WlllI a goodpenon we hevc 'IlO problem with [him] and WI'I arreIIUld him for II
xeason. We had to q;aestionhim and we have quostloned him and he is good to go, so
you can take him baeIc. The guy on the othl'lr aide oftho phooo Wllll acarcd III boll. He
said he WlllI going to take me [back] bllCllUlJOhe Wllll scmd of1he 1IOV0I'IlllIeIlt. He WllS
very eagctotake me badt becauae ho gotcalled fi:om the govllXlllll4lllt. He said "you will
come it', yourcompauyyou can do w!lIIlcvl'lr you want." They tearched my office whm
I worked mdtook my hard disk. They alto took my cellular phone. But I flU8hed tho
cell pboDe anyway because as 10011 as they told me 1WlllIlII'l'e8tod I hita couple of
buttons and flushed the wbole pbone. ..',>:iil.);",}:~!'\'i;1,'V',""..m',"ii,,';.

Pre$idiDg O:fli= Oby, so you cleam! the s)/Stem. .",', ,,"

DctaInoe: 1cloartd tho system complelely. I tell you why; because I had In my phone'"",.",." " -"
sometbiJlB called PCLWn. which in German it 1DIllIIlIJ tho PC StoJ:ed. Laden in 0emwI
means stoto. 1hadthat inmy~ llIld llalow tho A!Ilericans would DOt beliwe that it
is ml stoto whm I buy my lI1IpJI1ica. Plus,] did not WlW them to bcther my friends and
otherpeople, because maybe they would tap tbelr pbonea, so I flusbed. tho phone. They
onlyhave tho hard disk to my computer.

Pl'CIidJng Oflicer: So they have a phone but it is cloartd with nothina on itand they
probably eould usume thatyou did that purposely.

Detainee: Nothing on iL Ob. yeah they can assume wbatevc they want to assume.

PresicliDa Officer: You sec IKlwIhat10Gb to mc ifI Ftthatphone and there is notblna
onit lIIId bobaa cleaned tblt llIlDg. So what ofiDlemt could have been on tbi» llIlDg that
he was so worried about?

Detainee: Well, at least it's better to have themthink that then to bother everybody I
know.

PresIding Officer: Okay.
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Detainee: I don't care, 80 what III'll they going to 81fY'l

P=iding Officer: Rigbl, right, because they can't prove anything.

Detainee: You can't prove IIl)'lhIn& yeah. Weill tell you that I am being truthful with
you hiltback then.•.

P=iding Officer: I appnlCiatc that.

Detainee: Back then itwas chaos, a&lr September11111 llVCil1bodY was justdoing the
WlOIIg thing. EverybodyWIIItcd to set some place II&fe IlIICI everythIna else. Then it was
SeptemberorNovember 2c1'lheMIluritanian Intelligeflce eaUed me at 10:00 again.

PresidingOfficer: 'l'bml wecb Ialer?

Detainee: OkaY,1 came back; I was a'Vt1tY ,gpoo lIIld obedient guy. Every time l!Iey
Clllied me I cam&.

l'residing OfIieer: Yes, you.showedup every lime they WIIItcd you.

Detainee: Yesb, exactly I showed up every time. Tlum I told those anya. had I done
solMllllna Iwould havo:llll11br thohllls. Theysaid I was100 8IIl8rt D.Dd youwant to
Mow us thatyou III'll iunoeent. I 8I1d" obviously, I COIlId!lOt CODVinco you army
~." I couJdhave lmfot the hllls like other~'Iiwy were~tlml
I was, 80 they rm. They _ injihad and al Qaida and everything 00 ihey ran, waiting
for the wave ofbeat fades away ml then they can ,gp back to their [tegularlliVCII. But I
didn't CIII'llfot lome reason, maybe I'm stupid, I don't 1aIow. I went to the police D.Dd
said, .. Why do you WIII1t me?'" They 8I1d "please don't YOIl wouy it Is justfomlalitie8"~''r:':(:"·,',n:·c:,,n
aDd I was very sickaDd withill eight clays they Iumed me over to Ionian. 'Then man,what
bappe:Dedto me there IIbeyoIIddelICliption. ThIs was • CO\lZltrY I neverkMw man,I. .,. "'" "."".,,!'Ii!N~jl': ,', :;·,:;:!."'''Yh''

neverknew JoOOaa. I said can )'(IU~me over to 1ho Ullitcd StstclI D.Dd they said DO, the
United SlateS wants YOI1 to be tmned over to Jordan. I said whatdo I have to dO with
SOldan, tum me over to Amctlca. They said theyhavo no pIlIlrIl! lawbsals to tum me
over to the Ullitcd States. They WIIItcd to:find first tb.o proofthan they were ,gping 10
tum me overto the United Ststcs because there weill notfacilitiea to send me to yet. Do
you undetstand yourhonor?

P=iding Officer: Ob, yeah.

UNCLASSIFIEDIIF~

DetaiDeo: Tbc:n they sent JIllIto Jordan IlIICI well ids a lona lIlorybut I will try to make it
short. The JordaniaDa _ ilMItiptIDamy put in themlI1etmIum plot. They told me,
they III'll espeeieIly eollCC'tllCdaboutthe millemlium plot. The Jordanians have very bad
lqlIltalion when itcomes to tnlaImelItordetaillces. Wen and it is a filet that they
understand this whole~oftenorlsm much betlcrtban the averaae American
intenogator, I can wltDess to that and they can telI1ly1aIowwho is wbo. Hadthey known
who (whom} to Illally capture because ifyou capture cveryoJIO who has been in
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Af&banistan once you WOtI1d have10 capture so !ll4tIY people iIleIudiJJgAmerleatlS.
A:Jryway !My were very xc\u$nl.lo tm:iIIJ:C me. It was notewerycUt.y tortuxc, 1woold.y
lUYbc twice IIweek, 1\~Io times, lIIlillIetimea-. 'l'hcy__xcllRUlUto llld1Irome
IIIldlbatwas my _went. 1had tIeoirdcttogatuu, n-"lIlldhis teal
name, his fi1'stlllllXle was r llllpOttedhiullme.

UNCLASSJFIED/~

Presidlng 0ffiI:er: Whm you Iillldyou spoUcdhis realllll1l1e, on what?

Del3inee: OIlpapet',bewaswritlllgmy lIIIIWl!l' and tbcniSIlCIl [lII\Wl intcuoptoIS name
1n.Al'llblc. lbavebeen llpClttiDalllUChmore Am.mca:Ds~lIlO. And
theI1l11lOthetwas butmy main hlltrtogatm tintname ill
... Hewu a very briahtsurandbe ia;l'OUDS. He $\XIIC:k me twice in tho faeo on
dlftilmlt~0lIIl andpuhodme aga/DlIt conr:.xcte l2lllIll' IiIl1Ils bcciIQlIlll rof1I8Cd to talk
10him. llo1d him .. I am not taIldng10 you. 1have lo1d youewery!blng." 1really wall
not III forthcomin,g with1helm as I hadbeenwithAmericabecauao1hated them so much
beeause thoywere doing a dirtyjob. Itwunotokay. well10 molt wunotoby,lfit'D
olcayto YOlltbell I don't CllXC bat anyway.He~_ with II lot oftortlUo mdhe
tookme to lho 0I1ll1OOlll. wheto they to1:lllred 8llll t1Icrclwu1h1asur.wallbeatAm so
much Ito WIll Cl')'ins.ayln,g lib1\child. llillld" why <10 yOuWllI1t10 <10 this tome, I am
1aIldng,1amtalkiDg,juatukme and I will1ll1k." HfllIillld "yeah1h1a is goingto happe;l
10 YOIl100." I Aid "but1did notam you a J:CaSOll." Thenpoop\e _ wabIIec1 and
they sllII1Ild to beathim andbel atatled to t:r'J llIld it _ so difficII1t to sleep. Ithoullht it
__ II bodyb'lllldillg c:emer IIIld I llslced tb;l g1llicl (theyw=,'t~ to lalil~h'~bm
they ta1ked10 me an}'W1lY IIlId tell me emything) the'!~me likC'&lk\'iiillil"~J
lUlyway,l Aid you 8\1}'$ are traiol.ag at 3:00[.ithe:1 Dllid. "yes. doyou,.tih'gl)td
bodyb11lldln,g cemcr?" 1Aid "wbat?" eM tbenthoy look aDd lauBbcd at olldlotbl:t. Then
tho otherguya. were in1he boc\ybuildlIlg ceII1cr thoy wm maskl::d inb!aek,
O'Y~ __ moste<t Then 1bD other~Aid tothem."hoytab himto tho
bolI.ybuI.IlIiI eentet." 'lbey IIl!d"yeah.lfhowants 100." 'IbIIy woroJo1dDs. 1~ it
was not abodybulldin,gcentor \leQauao 1~ to bearcrying IIlld molllillB. ·Itwas so'
hard10 sleep. 1was so teITOrlzed, eventboullh I didnot IIUffilr that1l1li not aoJng 10 lie
to I am not going10 l\o to enybody inmy life. They tbreaton me withitbut thoy didn't <10
it. AU they didwas $trUCkme atdiifelem times in lIto:lilce andhit me aplnst tho
COIlCl'Oto wan.. I came out ofitwilh goodeyes. July Ie? 2002, tho JOl'IfMU""a turned me
averto 1bD United Staies. Amllrk:acame and1_so happy boeaWIII thoy save memy
clothes eM said youwm flee lIlld thoy _ goin,gto IIelld me10Maurilllllill, but1found
lIlYJclflnallOthcr:Pl*oe. They took my dothos offlIlld laaid this is an Amcrklm
!<ocbzJiquonot linAntbic _ beea1llle ArabI don't lIlI1lIlly take: all afyourclothes off. So
lhoy strippodlIlenabd like my mom bcm> me,aDd tIK:ypmnewc1othe1 on me. The 8UY
moved his masIc a littIo bit m41 c:ouIdsee Ito was pale all\llbatway I blewbe WIlS
American. It_lib1knowmy life ilJOod'" I didn't wantmyfilmilY1D seemelniUCh
• eondition onT.V. boI:auso I know AmetiClUlS axeaboutT.V. medla. 1didnot want
them to take mypicture. 1was in chains, avery bid suit, I hl410st so much we.\sht In
Jmdan I was like a ghost and Idid IlOtwant my flIm11yto sec me IndIis Iituadon, that
wes my worstfear In tho world. BesldeJ that I had 10 keep my water (eould not go 10 the
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restroom)10reiibthours Might.~ the Americana {had Il1O put] OJ!. adiaper but
psydlologieally1couldn't [urlnatt.} in tho diIpet. I trled to convi1Ico Illl"CIfthat it was
okq but1couldrl'tlllld I was e!IqllddiDa [on the i'll$idc]. I was &cttiDB polacmeo:t'fl1lm,
aft« fivehours offlight end lhis was my lhinking because llmow America Is very far, I
thought lIIlIybo it is Gcmlany and maybo they wml t1IlninS me onr to Germany. I WIllI
happy'l!ccalull [IJ know Germe)' Illld1think that e.uropo illiotmore libeta1 than
Amorica, tbat'swhat1think Illld tbat', what I boJieve. 1_happy I $lid"they ClllIlleIld
Il1Obacltto Oormmy, the boll wilh if'ljm WIIl1tto bel That's all I want IlbooglItthcy
were goingto lIIk IllC & ffIw quesfiollaand then1W01lld $0 to jail and Iwill be al1tight.
They tooklllC in abe1ieopter fOr 1mmimuealllld then a tlUi:Ik. 1beard Janguap thatI
have noverbeardbo&t'e; itwaallblPilIpiI'Io hroggage.lIOIllOlhiDstbat I have _ heard.
I said IlI1ll ill the Philippints. 1 WOIldercd what day itwas because1forgot wbethcr they
_ 0110 day before III or 0110 day aftelrvsbecause1hcytook Il1Oat 8:00 from 10ldan Illld
thollllJ1JDtDlIl. 11wu Iiko itwas night !DId IlOWallofa BIll!deIlit is day. It tumcd out to
be Begram AFB. They took Il1O llltO custody aDd itwas okly. 1felt good becauao1sa.w
other llctaineeI. They putIl1O In lsoIalioII fOr llllI> weekbut1folt blessed really~ it
bas been a JODi tinse Illld1have lllWef seen lIClrIIebody who wall ineivilian ulIlfurm. AIlI
hawboal sooina inmy eight JlKll1lIls were poophl inmilitaty llDifonus in loman, it la Illlt
ri&Jtt. I He dviliw.laee dcIailloos who lIIlfl'c:tlld Ilko1dld and1_so heppy. 1_
Dot really torturlld inBagram. 0Ile soldier pbec11110 wilhchains and be driIaedIl1O
OVJ::l' cOllCl:llt8 sllUIll.

Pmiding Of&er; Whenyou lIlY IIOldicr, whatsemoe IlIldWhat llOUI1lly?

Detainee:He WIllI Illl MP.

PreBiding omcer. U.S., a U.S. 1IOldiet1

Detainoo: Yes. I have no proofthat the inton'ogaror f(l}dhim to do it So my J1IllU la be
balta the delsineos end hedid it OIlhiJ own. "Hl:',""'", [,'"",Hi"S"

Pmidin&0ffiA:et:" So InBaJI81ll aU.S.lOldier dzagged you so far?

DeIlllneo: Yes, while takiJl81l11l1iolll tho~ to the i.ntmoptiOllo

Presiding Officer: Why did behave to drag you, because you wouldn'twalk'1

DctaiDec: llbink tiDIlO I am in lbacilell I walked &1ower,1llldhe didn'thave tilllll so be
jullt d%ll&Pd tbehelJ out or1Ile.

PresidiDg Officer: Okay, »0 you were g¢ing and you jllllt_not aoing flIllt enough.
, .

D~: That's what hhink. I don't think that my In1crrogatortoldhim to do it. I
think bemay blve jllllt bad abid day or maybe he WllJ clumsy or 90Dlelhipg That Is I'IIY
IIonest UseHIlIeDt. I didn't ten DIy /ntenoptort about this becauao I didr!'twant my
interrogator to know that aomething Iiko that oould be done to Jnl>.
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PtuIaiDI Ofljcr. Is1lIIs_ fint llma1bat70Illltt IlILYiaathis«baa itbcca~
beforf?

~ IIlMl'IllpOrIll4it.

Pmldi1laomcer: 'fw__\lroqbtchit lip bdn?

~ Nmr,__1was lIftUlUlllat diecaT.., 101411IO 101IIl11b1al. abo1l&

~
t..w. ~~"I'l'1._alIl*D*AlMzleanllllllllqeaIW

__ H6~.llIullUlebit.Ihufellluit
IlIlIII7Diii WI)' toq__• t IlI.w 'VeQ'W 1leckpam. fla aaIIe4S~NClll'8
II:lClhe~OIIl117l1Gi11t1o 'NoInlI t/.ViIli••Jet ofpaiD t5urilII tboh&tGm:.'lloa '1'bIl
ddlIlllllllloflOlQn1ftec...l!lb wasllOt itmllfbill thIIl1lo IIaid11I'."111II
_10Idck)'O!lr...... WbitdouIt_Ill ltick:JOlII'.....W.wllIllubd lbe
~ 1t4IdD'l,.n,lII&!cc""tolllO*-IkIlowklclt_Ja-the~
pal bDIl dIdil'tIalow'"..... lIIlnbtir. I.....".[~lllllllplctlt up.
~Ni4lt1O..i11 A,raW.1iulltalllMe"'SdIlIlBC illADWD ei1her. ftdao; DIlt lIUIU:
__iDAralJiIl.

.
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Pl'ealdblcomoac .~,'M~'lhlIt_.
:;~,"'.\'J\,?j ;i,tLf,\it;)'ii~(i?5t.l\51;hij1·; '~~~1fti~t,;

~ A%r'J'Itq,A»ad."2lIlI2,! - NJlaMd IBN 7611 IlI4 tn.\lIlIjhr. lidIII <rnro
Cuba. I _VlII71l1j1p)11:l1tcaMltWlU~ tIl:IItcIIy IlllJ~ _ aplacc·., ",.''';)&iOl\;''-' ',,,M.t,. ','M. 'iiii"~iii"'·
ct__people COII1d1Ie"lIl!4ICUo • lotof,.m.1llIlI atvIl'lIb _ llbeoPt thla p-il"INW_'!iillM;'\Wib~i'*!t!i:i,~"'S""'i

_IIIIlII'tCCllllll:OlledIllllwatl:Wby1tle~ I~1batllv_~of···"'i6'!!l1i~t1l!'~ir,i"X;""lJ".i·

A.awicIIIlI clidDOtWiMJI1II1IlIlIIIRIUI1 J4ld lIOt 'IWlIIIt tobe~. "llIat'. alii '''!fU'l!'.W~~1J\W\L?''~>Wc
......1"011l4.,fajlliL ,..lIlJilttl.li'llIIIIliY_&Il41br__bill t
clOlI'tlIbto f1etolflll'04. t-.[JaR]..,.~bml, &llIIbody.~1
l1loujrIlt tbI& /I AIlIWallCl1«lferl.1lI4tIlq _ ~Plltoboitt~~PBI
JU1 tilt! "we b'l1llltpqae.""'<IoI1't~ifSJlQtlII1owlId." IWllt tmf'f 0I1/:(I!c
aw!lllelll!l:llDto~ Clb,y 10far II) good. 1_jwt!lllm'wltb thellOIiIlIIIU'Jlitl"
UIl1I -Ittliallbod I1114l1la)1l1 I IIIIS"u&bero or klllI~m,;Ib'tmow. Not
e'WcJbu4.,."GI1IIO ~nL til u evil people. ~0lIlcr00'llllUiA1bey1>elimJlbe
AIIIeflca~ lIllIICtiIlIet. SllploIlI1lIr 1t ~AIlIC'ic& ImIIiJdallllllb)' the
- of: I.tlIIIIZiDhlAlSllleb,_11.410 ~CflcbY lU)'ill theS~ 11*
&llIcb.

1'reIIlI.lIDi omcet: W!lat .. tile-.. ap&a

DelIiDet: l\aIIIIibiD At SbIIeII. ItIIl1Xl1Ct1y 0Ilt )'lIIIf.a. SIJ11"IlI rbor 11·(2001) IIIlCl
IIlQbla"'lIl1mo..o"'ape' c1ruIic:IJ1y. n.1II111u IIIpClItCClIyS~11IO'"
the I\ltlblflla_1D0t:l0tlIr1m,wlliclI itaotl'dllaWflJloll\Y~I
t4Ybe4blm10 JOtoMF iPI1III:tlItII!Il. Okay, tbIIlflil~
lbePBIaW!lIIlIIlo IJlI"ll1'de.1_u ..pen!Q«I. HAll1l1h! I 1hlIllt_tlllll.~c
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114,.".tkw,*,.," ~tJat6l1cr/1111~* Ate •."••.0 ' , 'II. . .,-elIrir .
-.".,.",.MIlL 2k Ie"'""'*lkmfIMit lCl/ll'laA
~'J~ht"'6IHml"t4• ..... .Jklkmfl..-tMtilldltlll
fttIr ,-,01"" 11II, "",.,."ttl.,,.,
PmldlaI0fBcer. w...toiDatil 10'backtilwh=illO\l.ldoffllutlllY~ til1011
Is llu If1I1 otlbllabuM'-1lroIIIbtlIPJll\CIIttll~ oris1bis _lim tlala DI:N? Hew
aboutdie peopIelll t1Ill CfIID.II, JOll.saId0CIIIft1Kcod11_otlbll?

~ I \'lliIlktbltO'lllinlHoo4is_otlb!l__otmy1IlIairoplor:,_-JiIwidm,om-: 'fIllOtbe 'WIll 'be1OIlIl:IUvW'***...brilIa1taP. OIcq, coWd
"'"labIII fIom [llef1n lIIa204"'.1__Xpt1M.t\lIprt2003$lIdf~-.. '0
If:JOllllOll1d 10 to Allpt 204* beeIIuwe1'l'I11'l1i4tIIU_abIsday. Talce \111luu1IItte til
lblI seem_Ill tbltWll__CIIIlalMt !lit.

I,,
!
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btoughtme a. T.V and a lotofcomfort i1mlz. Slnce 2004,lrcal1y have JI() eompWnts
and ever,ytblnswas good. 1adm1Ued to what they WllZItOd and 1bey found out what WllS
rigbt IIIld not rigbtbeeIuse I dlI11enged tbem admiUing to thiDp inwhich they have to go
to people. 1did not bow lhlI1was abig challenge 'lOr them to set what they WIIIItlld.
'I.'ben itwas all right fflmY~GeDmlHood CIIIXl8herohe mablSUflIpmonaI1y that
Illlthin& il soma to bappl'ln to DIO bcca1IIc 1WllS 80 afraid. 1W88 afraid of8'Yc:rything,
Bva1 when !he CSaTwantedme to Ibmwith [t1lem} [m'ased it*auso1was afraid of
them. Andthat is lI'IY stoI:yand1baIlk}'Oll'If:f'J mIlChfor bearing this long 8Ild boring
stoJy.

l'tesidinaOffiee.r: Your CSRT was when?

Detainee: OSp_bet2004,IOmetbi!lg likethat.

Bolt'd Member: NoIificJJlionW88~on !he22 Fchnwy200s 10time wlsetbatmabl-.
Pmidlng o.tlicer: Yes.l1alowI W88hero when they tookpl-.

p~: YIII, the Colonalwaa ablackAirForce Colcmet

Pmidlng Officer: Yes.l'U blIve to look bi:lcauscl I do bowwho itWll8. Tlwlkve ,", h"', "JJoes 'thatconcluda yourti~ .~:~*Xj::~ ~"p"";~.:,,,~,;. ,:~_",,,w<t~ _.(iU~ ..

Pmiding Oflice:r: Since Augiltt 2OOG1

Detain8e: SiIlCo 2004,hilt1don'tWtIllt to [go] lnto details.

BoudMember. Tlwik YOl!.

PmidilllOflicer. Pea tlult conclude yourB1atema:lt?

Detain8e: Yes.

UNCLASSIFIED/~

Presiding o.tlicer: TbaIlk Yout

1h~MJ1lIIuJ1 ~luuI MqlU1t>1llHu,fllrl1l.~

T1rli~~ o.tJkerw 1If) qllRt1DlujortilebMtbt"­

~.lMlwBH1'IM"""'Jrqwst/ttit$:

Ptesi4itlg0ffiI:er: Do any oftbeAduUnlstrativo RrMllWBoard MembershIlve any
qllOSllonsibrthllDelainee? Itnot lhllvejust a couple.
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Board MCOlber: 1don'thave any slr.

Presidms Ofiicer: In3.d.l, wheleYOUmpolldod "todioaumartyr is oomct. to this
day be stlIl WllIlW to dio lI,S a IDIXtyrbIltbe does lllltwant to kill any lnnoc:entpeopk
lncludina.Ameslcma". Thatwas your_. Tbenmy qoealion to yousir is bow do
you fuIliI1 being amartyr withoutIdl1Ing iJmoI:entpeople?

~ 1WllSllXJl""fu!g1hisqoealioIl. In1ho ArabicWlldd Shabid does not~ectthe
Bnilishword~. Martyr inupposedtotranalato to Shabidblltitdocs notmlly,
tberelll'lllotsof~ ofShabld. Por iIlatlInce,ifyoudie~S your family, youare
Shehld; ifyoudiod 4eti:ndina your goods, thenyou lII'll Sbahid; ifyou dio deflmcIing your
C01IIltI'y againstinvadmtheayou aroSblhid; ifyoudio inawry painful way IW
dnnvnJrlg orCVCI1Ilomeeh fIChe. thenyorIllnI Sbahidtoo. Ifyou IlUfter more tIuIIlllDtlDlll
then you aro Shahid too. '!.be ultlmato aoal ofcvetY MllsIim is to die u Sbahid.

Pmidina Ofiicer: Or Martyt1

UNCLASSiFIED'"..

DeI1Iillell: QIloteUDquotlt"Mmty!". Because it Is1heshorteit way to heaven, lOwe
Muslim.be1icvo that WIl aU pus throu8h s01lllltillle in JlIIfPlO%Ybut SbahId don't speIld
this time in purgatory. Bverybody sIllS, so fMIifY MusIilll WIllItS to die Shahid. maybe of
dlarrbeaor 1OIDe!bing. 1doP.'twant to killoobody,1don't Wllltto maIco llll.)'body a
Sb1Ihid, ! jlllltwant to m.alte lll.yscifSblIhid.

Presidlns Officet: Oby,l~ you clearlug~ !lJ1.

Detaincc: My plllU\lf$.

Presiding Officer: That clem1hotup for llIe. Anything else?

Board Member: No, sir.

Board Member: If'you _ tIIIoued to Call1ld., whatwould you do?

Detaineo: Man just aiveme acouple oflllilllou dol1lllll aIldjust IIllme go 011 my ownlllld
I wlIl jllitbe fine. ! haveboonkept outoftile 'WOrld for more thmfbur yemlllld l:eally
doIl't Ialowwhat is aoina 011 outalde. ! wiJh! could blve a family apeIllef'ulllfe without
anybody tt')'Ing to pin IIIl,YtbiDa 011 me andtome1dIld ofll1OllCY to make me comt'oJ:tsble,
to make meserve God, have a ho\lse ladtake wo ofmy big family. That ill what I blve
beoD doing Illld m0Jt1ibly what I wl1l. do ifthe opportunity ariBeI. NllIICfMlc:ss, ll1llClc1
lIllll1e .ssi""_bec_to~~bact lulo society. Lookatitforexaotple, if!
gonowto look for ajob 8OIII.e\IIIheze! wlIlbave to wnte or1boy aro gologto ulc me, who
is yourprevioua employer 1114I lIIII goin8 to wdlB ITF-GlMO. 1was a tmorsuspllIlt
and1ho BUY will tell mearc youcrazyl Get out ofmy slshtbefore 1caII 1M po1lc:o. It Is
llIlllmland,wJty should llll.)'bodytake acbaDco like lhat. I wouldn'ttake a~ ll1ce
that, so I deflnitely \IIIllcnlaud.'1 thlnkjust to let any DetaInee out wilholltaivinB­
rohab or IOIDll help gtI1linghis way back into society, what !My eall rcintegralkm, is bad.
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Pmidlng Ofl'lcer. No otherquesllom andifyou don'tbve~ fhrther Ie p:esent.

AssistingMililaty ()fficer. Sir, may I interrupt fur aJeCOlld he_Ie lllIk you
1OIllO!hing.

PrelIlding ()fficer. SUre.

AJsislillgMilltaty 0fl:1cer: He WlIntS toknow ifit isbedthatyou are notasking.alotof
qucstiolls.

PresidingOffieer; Wellyou covered an lIWfullot ofstuft A1thouah wo may !lOthave
qumioIlS tbryou,you _11IIllt06 die Ullcl.uiillld SumJnary ofEvideIlco almostall the
questions. I caIl't seewhet1hfllmemberbas butI kDowfbb memberD4lXtto me hu lots
ofnotca.

BollldMoinbcr: He .caIl_my 1lCleI.

Presiding ()fficer. He lIBlI a lotofICdhbJlna. Alld I think tbtough the o;:ouBll of1he put
coap1cl ofbour, you mayhave~ a lot of1h\D8llwe would have asked. Inovcry
boardwilen aDetallleo comes we a1wa.ya ukhim whathe is iOiD&to do ifand when
releued so we call have III icIelt.ofwlaat he is soma batk In. Now you obYiollsly have a
lIade, Tei=tnunications., redio. '.

~~u , ",;\',ttrtlf.,

Plesldillg Officer: So you will heable Ie put)'Oll!llClfIe WOIk. Yes, YO:9:w\1l have Ie
elCplain those fum yem wIlcte you_'t employed. • -", '. . ",

Delaimle; Ycab, a tnulslaInr.

BoatdMembet: You wouldhe a vetY goodEllg1llh tnDSla10r fbr being~tauabt

DvIBinee: 'I'hank you.

P=tidJne D.ffiw: Ifyou llillmlld all that &allahhue. youhav' done weI1. I think again
thatyour lIIlSWOI:$ illretpOllS8 tbltyou_illCOlIl&CtwlthU_bin I.lIdcn'sby
opmtI.ve, you gave111_for !hat lIIlII I am not tunl that we really ncc410 t1:y 10
intliitJoaat» youon it. Youc!cared up tile one date1_~ about, inAprll2000,
you did a couple oflhillp andyou c1sared tbetup wilen you said It _ Mayand DOt
Apdl. It Is DOt an indlcatot lfwo don't have a lotofquert10Ds fur you. lfyou would not
bueslWll uaaD.Ythin& 'WOwouIdbuequb:zedyouonead10a0of1hcao [ifaDsJ. But
sllleoyou p:ovIdod reuollab1e _ ••that's why I have10 lOok lit my notca boI:auac1
write lItIItfas wo go througb 1Ill1... You1albdabout fbb As:bra Al-NIIbaD..being a .
close and good friand but tbatyou did llDtbolp him. You~ some ofthe questions
_ may have glllICI'lImd had you llDt talked10 \IS. YQU~ tbere ill some
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information that1 looked at that mentioned you may have facilitated laundered money
three times. You said you did it twice by transferring some money for your cousin.

Detainee: You are right.

Presiding Officer: Butyou refused a third time. So1meanthat may be in one of the
interrogations somebody may have said you did it three times. Now you are ad:t:nitting to
two ofthe three and trying to explaln what it was as far as laundering and not necessarily
a misinterpretation there. Your explanation was very reasonable.

Detainee: TbaDk you very much.

Presiding Officer: Mure importantly you answered my question aboutthe martyr.

Detainee: I was expecting that.

Presiding Officer: Because that threw me when you were sayingyes and 'agreeing to that.

Board Member: It was very informative.

Detainee: TbaDkyou very much.

Presiding Officer: So, 1wouldn'tbe concerned that we don't have a wl.\,?lrJ9t8,f.; .
questions.

Detainee: TbaDk youvery much sir. I have two questions.

Presiding Officer: Go ahead.

Detainee: The last part ofthe Unclassified Summary it talked about "that favor my
release", what is that?

Presiding Officer: The following primary factors that favor release or transfer.

Detainee: Yes, yes. I want to tell you maybe you will hear it in the classified sessionbut
I have no problem saying it in the unelassified session. I have been nothing but truthful,
honest and forthcoming with your govc:mment. Should youhave not beard ityou have
beard it from me. I call U.S. Intelligence as awitness, your government as a witness
because they would not witness otherwise. I just missed it here and maybe it's okay. I
thinkhonesty and truthfulness are parts ofmy religion.

Presiding Officer: Ifwhen I go 1hrough the classifiedsummery and I find that statement
in one ofthose documents we will make sure we include it in our report. Right now this
is what is avllilable to you and I llIlty see it somewhere else. Ifit is I tellyou today that I
will make sure it is in my report, your truthfulness.

Detainee: The secondquestion is, when will I have an answer?
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Presiding Officer: See now you llIC making it tough on me. I can't give you a time or a
date. Once we provide our recommendation to the Designated Civilian OfficiaJ. which I
am going to cover here in a minute, he makes a determination from our recommendation
and he may agree with us or he may deeide agaiust us. As to when he will notify you that
deeision has not been made yet. We did get some word within the last couple ofdays
that decisions may be passed out but the exact day when they are going to do that I
couldn't tell you.

Detainee: Do I have access to your decision or to the final decision?

Presiding Officer: Our decision no! Our decision is just between us and the Designated
Civilian Official Then his decision or what he decides from what we recommend, he
will at some point in1hne make that available to you. I just don't know ifit is going to be
ina month or in two or three months, I am not sure. Because you mayor may not know
but other Detainees have asked that question and I don't bow to this date that they have
been told. But we have as a board, each ofthe boards have been1tying to get that
rectified so that whether we are going to detain you or1nlusferyou, it would be nice for
you to know. .

Detainee: Right.

Presiding Officer: We are pushing for that answer to get to you as well. I think sooner ";:!.~i1lmiJ:IE·, ..,
than later, 1hetword win begetting passed. I just don't know exactly when.

Detainee: That's amazing. I,wish ifyou could pass the hearing to my lawyer in .·".C~U;,,·.: \VXSIHi: v'yn ":"'''OY'lm",,,
Washington, [D.C.] ifit's possible I don't know.

Presiding Officer: He will be able to requestwhatever lawyers can request I don't know
how much ofthis be is going to be [allowed} to [have} depending on his clearaIlCe, ifhe
requests the information he will be able to see certain things.

Delllinee: Do you know ifyour lawyer has provided anything to our headquarters in your
defense? Do you even know?

Delllinee: No, they told me that they are not allowed to interfere.

Presiding Officer: No, they aze not allowed to interfere buthe may be able to get access
to reports but I don't know what

Detainee: I knowfor sure in CSRT they got both classified and unclassified.

Presiding Officer: So ifbe has gotten the ¢lassified andunclassified, then be will know
what to do to look at the material we looked at He may have already looked at it and I
just don't know that. But as far as our decisiongoes and it being given to him, we won't
be doing it be will have to go through whatever channels be goes through. Yon may
know before he does.
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Detainee: Yeah, 1think so 100. 1am not really upset but just amazing that my life is
going to be at the bands ofone person called the Designated Civilian.

Presiding Officer: I am going to get to that let me get to it.

Detainee: Okay.

. The Presiding 0j'Jicu ffilIl the post-AdJn1nistrative RM'le1l' B041'd l1IstruetiollS 10 the
Detainee tmd tuljoll1'ned the open session ofthe ArlntUtfstrative RevIew Board.

The Presiding OjJ1cer openedthedossifiedportion ofthe session.

The Presiding Offlcu adj(Jll11Iedthe cfassijkdportion Ofthe session and the
AJlministrative RM'lew Board was closedfor deliIJeratlon and voting.

AlJTHENTlCATION

I ccItify the materist contllined in lbis 1nlllscript is a true llIld accurate SUlll.111ary of the
testimony 'vend' the

Presiding Officer
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COMBATANT
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Exhibit 1# Date

ECoC1 12/1512004

EC-e2 1112712004
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